NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

ALCOHOL & GAMBLING LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held at This meeting will
be held remotely at https://www.youtube.com/user/northamptonbcTV on
Tuesday, 14 July 2020 at 10:00 am.

George Candler
Chief Executive

I

AGENDA
WELCOMES
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
BUSINESS

LICENSING ACT 2003 (HEARINGS) REGULATIONS 2005

To consider whether the Committee should exclude the public
from all or part of the hearing during consideration of any item
listed above if the Panel believe that the public interest in so
doing outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of
the hearing, taking place in public, in accordance with regulation
14 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

REVIEW OF THE PREMISES LICENCE - D-LIGHT
CONVENIENCE STORE AT 69, KETTERING ROAD,
NORTHAMPTON

(Copy herewith)

PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION - PARTY IN THE PARK
(Copy herewith)

REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE - LES OLIVES, 18A & 18B
SHEEP STREET, NORTHAMPTON

(Copy herewith)




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5
¥

NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE -
Licensing Sub-Committee
10.00am Tuesday 14t July 2020

Remote Hearing

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To consider a request from Northamptonshire Police for the Review of the
Premises Licence for D-Light Convenience Store at 69, Kettering Road,
Northampton.

2.0 Summary

2.1 The review application was received on the 28" May 2020 and submitted in
accordance with licensing objective(s) for;

e The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

2.2  The current licence holder is Mr Shafiullah Malik Zadeh.

3.0 Consultations/Representations

3.1 When a request for the review of a premises licence or club premises
certificate is received, the licensing authority must display a notice at or near
the premises, and on the council’'s website. This gives responsible authorities
and any other interested parties a 28-day period for the opportunity to make
representations in relation to the review application. It is the responsibility of
the applicant to serve a copy of the review application onto the licence holder
and the responsible authorities.

3.2  The local authority displayed the obligatory notice on the 29t May 2020.

3.3  During the 28-day period representation has been received, this being from
lan Grieve at Northamptonshire Fire & Rescue Service.

4.0 Attendance

4.1  The local authority is required to request confirmation of attendance from all
interested parties. The following have to date confirmed attendance at
today’s hearing:

PC Sandy Tracey — Northamptonshire Police
PC David Bryan — Northamptonshire Police

Mr lan Grieve — Northamptonshire Fire & Rescue Service



5.0
5.1

6.0
6.1

6.2

7.0
7.1

Premises Licence Details

Licence Number: PL1008

The current Licence Holder of the premises is:
Mr Shafiullah Malik Zadeh

Currently there is no Designated Premises Supervisor at this premises having
been removed at a previous review hearing on 17t February 2020 when
police brought made an earlier review application for this premises on crime &
disorder grounds.

The premises are licensed for the following activities and times:
Off Sales of Alcohol:
Sunday — Thursday 08.00 — 23.00hrs
Friday — Saturday 08.00 — 02.30hrs

Opening Hours:
Sunday — Thursday 08.00 — 23.00hrs
Friday — Saturday 08.00 — 02.30hrs

History of Premises & Licence Holder

Mr Malik Zadeh has been licence holder at D-Light Convenience Store since
May 2019.

As stated this premises licence was reviewed by a sub-committee on 17t
February 2020 following an earlier application on the grounds of the
prevention of crime & disorder. At that hearing that hearing the premises
licence was suspended for 3 months, the Designated Premises Licence
Holder at that time removed and further conditions were added.

Options

At the end of the consultation period the licensing authority must hold a
hearing. It must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives, which are:

» the prevention of crime and disorder;
* public safety;
» the prevention of public nuisance; and

» the protection of children from harm.



The steps the Sub-Committee can take are to:
« to modify the conditions of the licence;
* to exclude a licensable activity from the licence;
* to remove the designated premises supervisor;
» to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months;

* to revoke the licence.

For those purposes, a condition of the licence is modified if any of them are altered
or omitted or a new condition is added.

8.0
8.1
8.2

Policy Considerations

Northampton Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy

s.182 Guidance Licensing Act 2003

Sections 11 & 13 give guidance for determination of this application.

Subsections 11.24 to 11.28 highlight the elements of the Guidance that are
most relevant with respect to this application. This is not exhaustive, and
guidance should be considered fully prior to making decisions with respect to
applications.

9.0 Commiittee

Each application must be considered on its own merits and any conditions
attached to licences and certificates must be tailored to the individual style
and characteristics of the premises and events concerned. This is essential to
avoid the imposition of disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on
premises where there is no need for such conditions. Standardised conditions
should be avoided and indeed, may be unlawful where they cannot be shown
to be necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives in any individual
case.

Report Contents Title
1. Review Application

2 Premises Licence PL1008

3. Blue Notice

4 Evidential Bundle

Report Author Martin O’Connell




[Insert name and address of velevant licensing authority and its reference number (optional)]

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the gnidance notes at the end of the form.
If vou are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your tecords.

I Police Constable 0010 TRACEY

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
D-Light
69, Kettering Road.,

Post town  Northampton Post code (if known) NN1 4ATW

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Mr Shafiullah Malik ZADEH

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
PL1008

Part I - Applicant details

Iam
Please tick v yes

1) an individual. body or business which is not a responsible

authority (please read gnidance note 1, and complete (A) [
ot (B) below)

2} a responsible anthority (please complete (C) below) X
3) a member of the chuib to which this application relates [l
(please complete (A) below)




(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v yes

Mr [ Ms [ Miss [ Ms ] Other title
(for example, Bev)

Surname First names

Please tick v yes
I am 18 vears old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
{optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIELE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

PC 0010 5 TRACEY
Northamptonshire Police
Wellingborough Police Station
Midland Road
Wellinghorough
Northamptonshire

NNS 1HF

Telephene mumber (if amy)
101 EXT 346307

E-mail address (optiomnal)
Sandy.traceyi@ northants.pnn.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes ¥
1) the prevention of crime and discrder X
7} public safety
3) the prevention of public misance
4) the protection of children from harm




Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

I act on behalf of the Chief Officer of Police for Northamptonshire, Mr Adderley. He

has delegated responsibility and has authorised me to act on his behalf with regard to
representations made by Northamptonshire Police to Licensing Authorities across the
county of Northamptonshire.

Northamptonshire Police call for the Review of the Premises Licence for D-Light under
the Licensing Objective of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder.

This Review relates to the offence of:

1. Sale of Non-Duty paid Tobacco. (Tobacco Products Duty Act 1979)

-

1. Knowingly allowing or carrying on or attempting to carry on unaunthorised
licensable activity. (5136 (1) Licensing Act 2003)




Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
suidance note 3)

1. The venue’s premises licence PL1008 was suspended after a Review was
instigated by Northamptonshire Police. The suspension was for 3 months from
the 4™ March, 2020, it is due to ceaze on the 4 June, 2020, the Premises Licence
was also modified and a number of conditons were added.

=]

On Monday 4% May, 2020 at approximately 22:15hrs, Northamptonshire Police
Licensing Officers conducted a Test Purchase (TP) for Tobacco ar D-Light
Convenience Store, 69 Kertering Road, Northamptron, the premises were open
and trading at the tme. A sale of non-UK duty paid cigarettes was made to the
officer. The officer making the TP noticed alcohol on display behind the counter,
part of it was concealed behind a grey sheet.

1. A second test purchase was conducted with this in mind by the same officer at
11.30hrs the following day for aleohol. On her arrival the premises were open
and trading. The same male member of staff who had made the cigarette sale the
night before sold her a bottle of wine from behind the sheet.

4. Uniformed officers attended the next day (6® May 11:30hrs) where a further test
purchase for alcohol was made to the same officer (who was wearing plain
clothes) by the same male member of staff whoe had made the previous sales of
aleohol and cigarertes. He sold a further bottle of wine to the officer. Police then
entered the premises and seized the aleohol that was in the store. This was seized
under the power of S19 PACE 1984, A total of 64 bottles of wine, 10 bottles of
whiskey, 14 bottles or Rum, 17 bottles of Liguenr, 11 bottles of Vodka and 13
bottles of Brandy were seized. Police also seized 5 packets of cigarettes and 1
packet of hand rolling tobacco that were below the counter, none of them had
UK duty paid. In total the estimated value of the alcohol seized was
approximately £3500.00, contact details of the Officer’s seizing the alcohol were
left at the premises. To date the Premises Licence Holder has made no attempt
to contact Northamptonshire Police about this matter.

Northamptonshire Police would ask the Licensing Sub-Committee of Northampton
Borough Council to revoke the Premises Licence, it is our assertion that the manner
in which the premises is being operated does not promote the Licensing Objectives.

When making this application Northamptonshire Police have consulted the stamtory
section 182 Guidance that accompanies the Licensing Act 2003, specifically paragraphs
11.24 — 11.28, which relates to Eeviews in connection with crime.

R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates Court outlines the case that the
action(s) taken by the Licensing Committee can be punitve. Northamptonshire Police
ask the Licensing Committee to consider Revocation of this particular Premises Licence
in the interests of the wider community for reasons detailed in the above case, who are
invelved or considering engaging in this illegal activity.

This is Northamptonshire Police’s initial submission to the Licensing Authority further
details regarding the visit will be submitted in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003
Hearing Regulations.




Please tick v ves

Have youn made an application for review relating to the X
premizes before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month  Year

L4 Jii] Ppfifp]

If vou have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when yon made them

1.

]

The premises Hcence was called for Review in respect of the Prevention of Crime and
Disorder licensing objective. The Review related to specifically, a seizure on the 18%
June, 2019 of 2,960 packets of illicit (No duty paid) cigarettes and 53.5 kgs of hand
rolling tobacco in addition they seized 2538 litres of alcohol that at the time could not
be accounted for.

On the 19* September, 2019 officers from Northants Police, HMRC, NCC Trading
Standards Department and officers from Northampton Borough Council conducted
& visits in the Borough of Northampton, one of these visits was to D-Light. A male
was found to be in charge of the premises, this male gave his details to officers.
Checks were conducted at the time with the Immigration Service and the male was
found to have no legal right to work in the UK.

In addition to the points above, a number of warnings were issued by NCC Trading
Standards regarding complaints of illicit tobacco sales.




Please tick v

¢ I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities X
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

¢ Tunderstand that if I do not conply with the above requirements oy X
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
AFALSE STATEMENT IN OE. IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKFE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LTABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO AFINE OF ANY AMOTUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly anthorised agent (please read
suidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

A
Date 19/05/2020

Capacity Northamptonshire Police Licensing Constable

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read gnidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If vou would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address vour e-mail address
{opticnal)

Notes for Guidance

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review mmst be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to comrespend with you about this application.

[

=

10




Licensing Tearmn

[l ol
tg Northampton Borough Council
NORTHAMPTON
ROROUaA COuNCI
Home Register Log in

You are here = Home = Licensing Act Premises Search » Detail » Application

Licensing Act 2003 - Premises Licence Register as at 10:31 on 1 July 2020

D-LIGHT Convenience Store
£ Kettering Road, MNorthampton, Morthants, Nr1 440

Premises Licence PL1008E from from 04/06/2020 to indefinite

Licence holder(s)

Full Name: Mr Shafiullah Malik Zadeh
Designated Premises Supervisor

Full Name: Pending
Permitted Activities

+ the sale by refail of alcohol

Premises Open Hours Granted

Time From Time To
Monday-Thursday og:00 23:00
Friday-Saturday 0&:00 02:30
Sunday 0g:00 23:.00
Activities - Times Granted
Time From Time To
M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises onhy
Monday-Thursday 0g:00 23:00
Friday-Saturday 0g:00 0z2:30
Sunday 08:00 2300

ANNEX 1 - MANDATORY CONDITIONS
Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol
(1) No supply of alcohal may be made under the premiseas licence -

(&) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisorin respect of the premises licence, or

(b} at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is

suspended

(2} Every supply of alcohaol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence

The following mandatory conditions are to be applied to the licence stated above in accordance with The Licensing Act 2003

{WMandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2014.

The following conditions shall come into force on 28th May 2014

1. Arelevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less

than the permitted price.
2. Forthe purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1-

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic
Liquor Duties Act 1979
(b} "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula-

P=D+(DxV)

Where -
{iy Fisthe permitted price,

{iiy D is the rate of duty chargesble in relation to the alcohal as if
the duty wiere charged on the date of the sale or supply of the
alcohol, and

(iii} V' Is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the
alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol,

{c) "relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence -

11



(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of
such alicence, or
{iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a
supply of alcohol under such a licence;

{d} "relevant person’ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises cerificate, any member ar
officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e} "valued added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994,

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b} of paragraph 2 would {apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of
pennies, the price givan Dy that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the
nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day ("the first day”) would be
different from the permitted prie on the next day {"the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2] The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry
of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day

ADDITIONAL MANDATORY CONDITIONS

The following mandatory conditions are to be applied to the licence stated above in accardance with The Licensing Act 2003
{Mandatary Licensing Conditions) Order 2010 as amended by the The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions)
(Amendment) Order 2014

The following conditions shall come into force on 15t October 2014

3. [1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in
respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol

(2} The designated premises supervisar in relation ta the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohal at the premises is
carried on in accordance with the age verification policy

(3] The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as
may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and either-

(a)a holographic marl, or

(bjan ultraviolet feature

Licence Conditions

ACCTV systemn is in operation. recardings will be kept for 28 days and appropriate members of staff will be trained to retrieve
recordings on reasonable request by an authorised officer

Challenge 25 proof of age scheme is in place.
The Premises Licence holder and staff will wark with the Police to promote the licensing objectives.

Conditions added to the Premises Licence for D-Light, 69 Kettering Road, Northampton following the Licensing Sub-
committee hearing on 17 February 2020

The Premises Licence Holdsr will conduct a Fire Risk Assessment to the satisfaction of the Morthamptonshire Fire & Rescue Service
within 3 months of the date of the Sub-committee's decision, ie by 17 May 2020 The Premises Licence Holder will take any
necessary steps identified by the Fire Risk Assessment to the satisfaction of Morthamptonshire Fire and Rescue Service.

Mr Aram, once removed from his role in accordance with the Sub-committee's decision, is not to be employed atthe premises in any
capacity whether paid or unpaid.

The Premises Licence Holder will provide and maintain a CCTVY system to the specifications recommended by the Northamptonshire
Police and set out further below

1.

CCTY will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of EVIDEMNTIAL QUALITY in all lighting
conditions particularly regarding facial recognition. Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits,
outside areas, and all areas where the sale/supply of alcohol occurs

. Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly time and date stamped. Recordings must be kept in date

order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period of 28 days. The Premises Licence Holder must ensure that at all times the
premises are open the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) or a member of staff who is trained and capable of downloading
CCTY footage in a recordable media format is on the premises. The DPS or staff member will download and produce any
footage to a Police Officer, an authorised officer or Trading Standards Officer on demand and in a viewabls format.

. CCTV equipment shall be kept in a secure environment under the control of the DPS or other responsible named individual. An

operational weekly log report must be maintained and be endorsed by signature, indicating that the system has been checked and
is compliant during that week.

. Inthe event of any system failure, actions taken to remedy same are also to be recorded. The Premises Licence Holder'DPS must

report the failure of the system to the Police (on contact number *1017) and Council Licensing Department immediately.

12



Responsible Alcohol Retailing Training

1. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol are to be trained in Responsible Alcohol Retailing prior to commencing employment at
the premises. Any existing staff are to receive such training (if not already provided) within 3 months of the date of the Sub-
committee’s decision, i.e. by 17 May 2020,

2. Re-training is to be carried out annually.

3. Records of training provided, including training materials used, shall be kept on the premises and must be produced to a
police officer or an 'authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or a Trading Standards Cfficer for
the area in which the premises are located on demand

CHALLENGE 25:

1. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Paolicy. Such policy shall be written down and kept at the premises and shall
require the production of appropriate identification documents such as a passport or photographic driving licence. The policy
shall be produced to a palice officer or an ‘authorised person' (as defined by section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) ar a
Trading Standards Officer for the area in which the premises are located on demand

2. Prominent, clear and legible signage indicating that the scheme is being operated shall also be displayed at all entrances to
the premises and behind any counter at which sales of alcohol will be made. The signage is to be in a form provided by a
national group such as the British Beer and Pub Association, Challenge25 .co uk or pass-scheme org uk.

REFUSALS:

1. Awritten register of Refusals will be kept in relation to any refusal to sell alcohol, whether due to the person's age or lack of
sobriety. The register will include a description of the person concerned, the date and time of the incident, any requests made
to werify their age (where relevant), and any other details of the incident. The register shall be kept for a period of 12 months
and will be produced to a police officer or an "authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or a
Trading Standards Officer for the area in which the premises are located on demand

IMMIGRATION:

1. Awritten record must be kept at the premises and must be produced to a police officer or an "authorised person’ [as defined
by section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or a Trading Standards Officer for the area in which the premises are located on
demand. This written record must record the following information as a minimumnm:

a. Details of all persons employed at the premises in any capacity.
b. The full names, dates of birth and current home addresses of persons listed as (a) above.

c. Acopy of the current Home Office 'Right to Worlk' Checldist or any other current document issued by the Home Office, with the
above information within a separate document for each employee.

2. All such information shall be recordedfcopied prior to employment at the premisas, and should be supported by a copy of the
relevant document(s) indicated in the current Home Office "Right to Work Checklist” or any other current document issued by
the Home Office.

LOITERING:

1. The Designated Premises Supervisor and staff will use their best endeavours to ensure that persons unconnected with the
business do not loiter within the premises

13



NORTHAMPTON [
LICENSIN:

APPLIGATION FOR THE REVIEW.

™ s

Been

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH GOUNCIL
LICENSING ACT 2003

APPLICATION FOR THE REVIE W OF A PREMISES LICENL ;

Moctamplonahine | [T maible authority his apph
REVIEW of & Pre Ba L e Gacton 51 of the Licansang
5 200 | IE 1 o [¥Light. 66 Ketienng Road, Northamgt
AT
The grounds for 1 sl Ao b ot ) Object f
rewerlior e i [ Jmr dud I 1iw &t 1he premise
Aryy Db pany (RR]u I 1 Thw b HEET
L erimbon mes] 0 500 oy 1 L
jdress by the 25 Juna 2020
T I
Thi [Chapat A
ot yign Boreudh i
T Caiib el
1 Gl '.__I'-
Morthamplor
HMH1 10E
. My il 3§ 2 tivds day tha dail
I T v 1@ i E prme g EAOTE E 7 25 Juna 2030
(=1 ! i 1 L W © the I 1 L
Fe knigaanngly Or NeCK y 1o a make a fa taiement
Vicsr vl an o e A Bad Thel Tl v 1
i A b Ty GO et fer makeng @ Rl il
i nl o (E5 ¥ 5yt sbar dnrd el
H | CE i 70 May 2020

14

TR
e ——

————
S ——
e —

p—



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

15



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

19



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

23



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

25



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

27



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

29



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

31



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

33



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6
R

NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION -
Licensing Sub-Committee — Zoom Meeting
11.30am Tuesday 14th July 2020

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To consider an application for a new premises licence submitted by Showtime
Events Group Ltd for Party in the Park on Abington Park, Northampton.

2.0 Summary

2.1 An application was submitted on behalf of the proposed licence holder by its
Director Mr David Bailey. The application was received by Northampton
Borough Council on 31st May 2020.

3.0 Application Details

3.1 The application was submitted for the purposes of holding weekend music
and entertainment events for up to 4,999 people on Abington Park and
permissions for the following activities were requested:

Sale of Alcohol for consumption on & off the premises

Friday — Saturday 12.00 - 22.30

Sunday 12.00 - 21.30
Live Music

Friday - Saturday 12.00.- 22.30
Sunday 12.00 — 21.30

Recorded Music

Friday - Saturday 12.00.- 22.30
Sunday 12.00 — 21.30
Performance of Dance

Friday - Saturday 12.00.- 22.30
Sunday 12.00 — 21.30

Provision of Anything of a Similar Description to Live Music, Recorded
Music or Performances of Dance

Friday - Saturday 12.00.- 22.30

39



4.0
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.5

5.0

5.1

6.0

Sunday 12.00 — 21.30
Opening Hours

Friday — Saturday 12.00 — 23.00

Sunday 12.00 — 22.00

The proposed Designated Premises Supervisor is Mr David Bailey, the holder
of a personal licence issued by Northampton Borough Council.

Consultations/Representations

When a request for a new premises licence or club premises certificate is
received, the applicant must display a notice at or near the premises and
serve a copy of the application onto the responsible authorities. For electronic
applications it is a requirement of the local authority to serve a copy of the
application onto the responsible authorities.

This gives responsible authorities and interested parties the opportunity to
make representations in relation to the application for a period of 28 calendar
days. The last date for making representations was 28t June 2020.

The obligatory notice was displayed on the premises as verified by licensing
officers as to was the newspaper advertisement.

Northamptonshire police have considered the application and PC Sandy
Tracey (Licensing Officer) has made a representation on the grounds of The
Prevention of Crime & Disorder and Prevention of Public Nuisance.

Environmental Protection have considered the above-mentioned premises
licence application pertinent to the licencing objective of the prevention of
public nuisance and made no representation and there are no other
representations from responsible authorities or the public.

Attendance
The local authority is required to send a notice of hearing to all interested

parties and request confirmation of attendance. A notice of hearing was sent
to the following persons on 30" June 2020:

Applicant — Mr David Bailey — Showtime Events Group Ltd
Northants Police — PC Sandy Tracey

Plan of Premises Layout & Location

40



7.0
7.1

8.0
8.1
8.2

Please see premises Plan and Location map attached.
Options

If representations are received, then at the end of the consultation period the
licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider them. It must take such
steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives,
which are:

o the prevention of crime and disorder;
o public safety;
o the prevention of public nuisance; and,
o the protection of children from harm.
The steps the Sub-Committee can take are to:
o grant the licence subject to —
(i) the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) of
the Act modified to such extent as the authority

considers appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives, and

(i) any condition which must under section 19, 20 or
21 be included in the licence;

o exclude from the scope of the licence any licensable
activity to which the application relates

o refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premise’s
supervisor

o reject the licence application.

Policy Considerations
Statement of Licensing Policy
Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Section 9 gives guidance for determination of this application.

9.0 Commiittee

Each application must be considered on its own merits and any conditions
attached to licences and certificates must be tailored to the individual style
and characteristics of the premises and events concerned. This is essential to
avoid the imposition of disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on
premises where there is no need for such conditions. Standardised conditions

41



should be avoided and indeed, may be unlawful where they cannot be shown
to be necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives in any individual
case.

Appendix No Title

A. Application to vary premises licence

B. Plan and location map

C. Blue Notice

D. Police Objection Email

Report Martin O’Connell

Author Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer

42




Application

Northampton For help contact

W8 [otTamrToN Application for a premises licence licersin tan.aovuk
Toaeuancomnin . )

Licensing Act 2003 Telephons:

* required information

Section 1 0f 19 1

You can save the form at any time and resume it later, You do not need to be logged in when you resume,

| This is the unique reference for this
System reference |Not Currently In Use application generated by the system.
Your reference fP_am, In The Park - Abington You can put what you want here to help iapad

track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant? Put "no" if you are applying en your own
behalf or on behalf of a business vou own or
™ Yes * Mo work for.

Applicant Details

* First name ]David

* Family name |Eailt=.*':,r

43



[ Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

@  Applying as a business or arganisation, including as a sole trader

" Applying as an individual

Applicant Business

Is your business registered in
the UK with Companies
House?

® Yes T HNo

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure,
Applying as an individual means you are
applying so you can be employed, or for
some other personal reason, such as
following a hoblby.

MNote: completing the Applicant Business
section is opticnal in this form.

109945120

Registration number

-

Business name |SHOW TIME EVENTS GROUP LIMITED

| I your business is registered, use its
| registerad name.

VAT number !

I

Put "nene” if you are not registered for VAT,

Legal status [Private Limited Company

© Queen's Printer and Controller af HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business [Directur

44




Section 2 of 19

PREMISES DETAILS

Ifwe, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below {the premises) and I/'we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003,

Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, 05 map reference or description of the premises?
e  Address 05 map reference "  Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name |Abington Park |
Street Park Avenue ]
District g' |
City or town [Northampton |

|

County or administrative area |

Postcode N1 sLW
Country [United Kingdom —|
Further Details

45




Section 3 of 19

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

Anindividual or individuals

Alimited company

A partnership

An unincorporated association

Arecognised club

A charity

The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 (c14) in respact of an independent hospital in Wales

O ODO0O0Oo0DO0OO0®EOQg

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated

O activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England

[ The chief officer of palice of a police force in England and Wales

[] Other {for example a statutory corporation)
Confirm The Following

= l'am carrying on or proposing ta carry on a business which involves
the use of the premises for licensable activities

[ tam making the application pursuant to a statutory function

O I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
© virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

Section 4 of 19

NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS

Provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate give any registered number. In the case of 2
partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), give the name and address of sach party concerned.

Non Individual Applicant's Name

Name @cw Time Events Ltd _|
Details

leqgistered number (where

ipplicable) @945 120 |

Jescription of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association ete)

46



Section 5of 19
OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the
premises licence to start? |

L]

dd mm ¥yyy

If you wish the licence to be

valid anly for a limited period, f b [
dd mrm ¥y

when do you want it to end

Provide 2 general description of the premises

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for

consumpticen of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

The event will be fenced and we wish to have all the area within the fencing as place for
consumption.

If 5,000 or more people are

expected to attend the

premises at any one time, 4909 [
state the number expected to

attend

© Queen's Printer and Cantrollar of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Section 6 of 19

PROVISION OF PLAYS

Will you be providing plays?
T Yes ® Mo

Section 7 of 19

PROVISION OF FILMS

Will you be providing films?
" Yes & No

Section 8 of 19

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

" Yes ® No

Section 9 of 19

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

™ Yes & No

47




Section 10 of 19

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

Will you be providing live music?

™ Yes " No
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY o
Start i:l End |: i;i??:ég?z:ﬂzz:n:]; ;;’u?::ektlalls for the days
S — ] o oo e s
TUESDAY
Start : End [ ]
Start [ End |:
WEDMNESDAY
Stat [ | nd [ ]
Start : End [——_J
THURSDAY
sart [ | nd [ |
& Quean’s Printer and Cantraller of HMSO 2009
Continued from previous page...
FRIDAY
Start [12:00 | End
Start 5 ed [ ]
SATURDAY
Start :| End |:|
SUNDAY
Start End I’H_|

Live bands and singers with amplified music

NB: Applicant made an error in the form as timings for live music should read as
12.00 — 22.30hrs, not 20.30hrs as reads above.

48



ST LUy

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC
Will you be providing recorded music?

® Yes ~ No

Standard Days And Timings

@ Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 09
Continued from previous page...
MONDAY .
Start End :I E‘:‘;ﬂ t1"5¥;'3r;]gi::1d2:n'r; ;ir\rc!?:lc:t:ails forthe days
st [ ] nd [ tobeusedtortrenaiy T
TUESDAY
Start || End |
WEDMESDAY
Start [ end [ |
THURSDAY
Start ' End :
st [ End [ |
FRIDAY
Start ITiu—_' End (2030 |
Start [ | End
SATURDAY
st 1200 | End
SUNDAY
Start End
Start | End l_—f
-

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both? ~ Where taking place in 2 building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
¢ Indoors &  Outdoors ~  Both include a tent,

NB: Applicant made an error in the form as timings for live music should read as
12.00 — 22.30hrs, not 20.30hrs as reads above.

49




Section 12 of 19

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

Will you be providing performances of dance?
* Yes T No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start :l End I: (e.g., 16:00) and only gi_vedetails far thgday
. — [ i s e
TUESDAY
stat [ | end [ ]
WEDNESDAY
Start Z End I:
Start |:| End :
THURSDAY
Stat [ | End [ ]
stat || end [ |
FRIDAY
Start End
Start J End E
SATURDAY
start [1200 | End 2230 |
Start ::l End
SUNDAY
Start ed [ |
Continued from previeus page...
Will the performance of dance take place indoors or outdoors or bath? Where taking place in a building or ather
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
" Indoors # Outdoors " Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively] whether or not music will be amplified or unam plified.
I

50



;HA?'H‘CIEION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recarded music or
performances of dance?
= Yes T Mo
Standard Days And Timings
VIONDAY Glve timings in 24 hour clock.
Start D End !:I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
S — it [ ey e
TUESDAY
sert [ ] End [ |
WEDMESDAY
Start : End :I
sat [ ] Bnd [ |
& Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSD 2000
Continued from previous page...
THURSDAY
Stat [ | end [ |
FRIDAY
Start |12:00 ; End [22:30 |
Start [ | End
SATURDAY
Start | End |
SUNDAY
Start End
st [ | End [ |
Will this entertainment take place indoors or outdoors ar both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
T Indoars # Qutdoors T  Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be autharised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

51



Section 14 of 19

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will you be providing late night refreshment?

T Yes

® Mo

Section 150f 19

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohal?

* Yes T Ne
Standard Days And Timings
MOMNDAY . i
Start |:\ End l:l ;';ﬂ%ﬁi:‘f:n:f ;eri?:t.ails for the days
st [ it [ | moeuetortrosaty
TUESDAY
Start :j End Z
WEDNESDAY
Start I: End :
Stat [ | Bnd [ ]
THURSDAY
Start I: End r:
FRIDAY
Start |:| End I::
SATURDAY
Start End [2230 |
Start , End [ |
SUNDAY
Start IE_-{JL_J End
stt [ End [ |
Continued from previous page...
will the sale of alcohol be for consumption: If the sale of alcohal is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohel
Onthe premises "  Offthe premises @& Both is for consumption away from the premises

State any seasonal variations

52

select off. If the sale of alcohal is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.




State the name and detalls of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as premises supervisor

Name
First name David
Family name |Bailey ]

Enter the cantart's addracc

|
| Personal Licence number
(if known) [PA2813

Issuing licensing authority
{if known) b-lﬂrth ampton |

53



f HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Standard Days And Timings
[ MONDAY T
Start i__: End I: g.:, t:::ér:i?i:ﬁlz;n?: ;iruﬂc;i:.alli for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start | End to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start E End
WEDNESDAY
st [ | end [ |
THURSDAY
sart [ | End .'
FRIDAY
Start |12:00 | End |23:00
Start End | '
& Jueen’s Printer and Controller of HMS0 2009
Continued from previous page...
SATURDAY
Start [12:00 End
Start I end [ |
SUNDAY

Ctata armu casrmmal ceneiadine.

54




Section 180f 19
LICENSING OBJECTIVES
Describe the steps you intend ta take to promote the four licensing objectivas:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (bede)

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together,

All drinks that are purchased for consumption on the premises will be served in plastic or polycarbonate containers,
Where alcohol is sold for consumption off the premises, they must be placed in a carrier bag prior to being handed overto
the customner, Informing them that this alcohel is cannot consurned in the licensable area.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

All people entering the licensable area shall be ID chacked and in accordance with challenge 21, they. Any person under the
age off 18 will be refused service, Any person found to be buying or giving alcohol to a underage person will be asked to
leave the event,

Roaming response teams will be deployed to check on the perimeter fencing,.

All public must come in a designated entrance where bag searches will be in operation,

¢) Public safety

All staff will have colored high viz vests, (Blue 514} [Yellow Steward s) (Orange Supervisors & Managers) |
{Furple Event Manger) '

Safety office will be on the event and myself David Bailey having completed my level 4 safety officer course will alsa be an |

L Queen's Printer and Controller of HMWS0 2009

Continued from previous page...

site at all times.
First aid will be supplied by a professional medical company

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Have a zero tolerance to any anti sociable behavior, with perimeter checks.

The stage will be angled a cross field as not to impacted on the property around the event.

Between the hours of 12.00-18.00 the music levels shall not exceed LAeq, 1min45DE. Between 18.00-22.30 shall not exceed
LAeq,1min55DE Music an the stage will be stopped at 22.30 on the Friday & Saturday, Sunday 21.30. The Funfair music will
be turned down at the same times. conformity checks of music noise leaves shall be retained 3 months after the event, and
upon requested be made available to the local autharity for inspection,

&) The protecticn of children from harm

Lost children unit manned by trained staff will be located at the event control and clearly signed. Both bars will run a
challenge 21 policy and will have on site refresher training before the event opens.

55




Plan of licenced area layout

56



Blue Notice

Show Time Evamiis Gw Lid
hﬂhhh.nm

57



Police Objection

Dear Sir or Madam,
I act on behalf of the Chief Officer of Police, Mr Adderley, he has delegated responsibility and has
authorised me to act on his behalf with regard to representations made by Northamptonshire Police

to Licensing Authorities across the county of Northamptonshire.

| am placing a holding objection to the above application due to there being insufficient detail in the
application to fully support the Licensing Objectives; This application gives us concern regarding the
Reduction of Crime & Disorder and Public Nuisance objectives.

| will be in touch with the applicant to work out a potential way forward with this application.
Kind regards,

Sandy TRACEY

Police Constable 0010 Sandy TRACEY
Northamptonshire Police Alcohol Licensing Constable

Wellingborough Police Station
Midland Road,Wellingborough. NN8 1HF.

Telephone 101 Ext. 346307

58



SHO

Vints Al

29th August to 30t August
2020

Event Management
Plan

99 thebuckleys765@gma il.com



CONTENTS PAGE

1.0

2.0
22
23.
24,

3.0.

4.0.
4.1

5.0.
5.1.
5.2
5.3.

5.4.
5.5.
5.6.

6.0
6.1.

7.0
7.1.
7.2,
7.3.
7.4
7.5.
7.6.
7.7.
7.8.
7.9.
7.10.

8.0.
8.1.
8.2,
8.3.

9.0.
9.1.
9.2.
9.3

10.0.
10.1.
10.2.

INTRODUCTION and GENERAL INFORMATION

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Responsibility

Public/Employers’ Liability Insurance
Venue Details

Event ltinerary

Siting of Equipment
Temporary Structures

Communications

Roles and Responsibilities
Statement of Intent

On Site Communication

Locations/Communications
Communication with the crowd
Communication with the Press and Media

Traffic Management
Parking

Health and Safety (Activities subjected to Risk assessments)
Medical Plan

Ambulance

Hospitals

Covid-19 Virus Policy and Method Statement

Fire

Policing

Waste Management

Accident Reporting

Risk Assessments including Covid-19 Specific Assessment (7.9A)
Disabled Area/Access

Security

General

Clothing and Security Staff
Crowd Control Management

Services
Water
Electricity
Welfare

Contingency
Reducing Crowd Density
Evacuation procedures

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 60 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



10.3.
10.4.
10.5.
10.6.

11.0.

Lost Personnel/Meeting Points
Discovery of Suspicious Package
PA system

Suspect package

Emergency Arrangements

Major Incident

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

61 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



1.0 INTRODUCTION and GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1. Intfroduction

This is the Party in the Park Event Management Plan for the event to be held between 29" qng 30™

August 2020.

2.0 Background Information
Party in the Park has been organised and will be managed by Show Time Events.

The event will be located on the football pitches adjacent to Park Avenue South and Abington
Park Crescent to the roadway through the park opposite Christchourch Road.

This is a grassed area and vehicle movement will be closely monitored to prevent damage to the
grassed areas.

Show Time Events acknowledge that if any part of the grassed area becomes damaged that they
will re-instate to previous condition.

Show Time Events are the License Holder for the event and provide qualified staff to manage the
licensed areas in line with the Principles of the Licensing Objectives.

It is anficipated an attendance over the two days of 2000 participants.

We have generously calculated that the site being used can accommodate 14080 persons at
any one fime.

There will however be a limit of 4999 allowed on site at any one time, which will be controlled by
stewards and security using tally counters.

Along with the festival celebrating all that is good in Northamptonshire, the organisers are
arranging for stage entertainment comprising of a number of tribute bands and singers over the
two days. It is not thought that these groups will cause any major disorder issues.

On site also will be Fairground Rides and activities managed by John Greatorex and Albert Evans
There will be a stage, licensed bar areas, food stalls, fast food outlets and a fairground on the site.
Plastic Beer containers will be used to prevent bottles and breakages.

2.1. Responsibility

The event is the responsibility of Show Time Events, as the organisers, will be responsible for the
Event Management Safety and Security plan.

2.2. Public/Employers’ Liability Insurance
Show Time Events covers this to a value of £10 million. Contractors and concessions have

responsibility to provide their own liability Insurance; evidence of this will be required and verified
by the Event Manager.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 62 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



2.3. Venue

Address Details: Abington Park (Lower Park) Northampton. The site will be located on the football
pitches between Park Avenue South and Abington Park Crescent.

This is a public park owned and maintained by Northampton Borough Council.

There will be no parking for visitors to the event on site, but are being encouraged to utilise the
town centre parking facilities and on street parking.

There will be parking on site for contractor’s vehicles.

Access to the arena for contractor vehicles will be via the metalled road from Park Avenue South
opposite Christchurch Road.

The park itself is accessed from Park Avenue South and Abington Park Crescent and there will be
boundary fences preventing pedestrian access to the park. For this reason the festival site will be
fenced using Herras fencing and security staff.

Venue Capacity — up to 4999

Estimated attendance 4500 per day, however this number will be limited to a maximum 4999 at
any one time, and will be controlled by stewarding using tally counters for in and out and
queueing on the basis of one in one out

3.0. Event ltinerary.
The programme of events consists of the Following:

Monday 24t August 2020
Commence delivery of fencing and erection.

Wednesday 26t August 2020

Delivery of tower lights and toilets
Commence build programme of Marquees
Delivery of catering equipment etc.
Overnight Security on site

Commence tent building

Thursday 27 August 2020
Overnight  Security on Site

Friday 28t August 2020
Safety Meetings

Saturday 29" August 2020

12.00 hrs Site open to public
22.30 hrs Site closed
Sunday 30" August 2020

12.00 hrs  Site Open to public
21.30 hrs  Site closed
Monday 31st August 2020

Site breakdown and fidy site

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 63 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



4.0. Site
The Event Manager will site all events infrastructure before any contractor leaves the site. An
emergency contact number will be made available for all contractors.

All catering units will be sited by the Events Manager.

4.1. Temporary Structures
The event will consist of the following:

Herras Fencing — to be used to secure the External limits of the site.
Secure site office

Temporary Lighting

Portable Tardis Toilets

Diesel Generators.

Stage

Food Qutlets

5.0. Communications
5.1. Roles and Responsibilities

Event Manager: David Bailey (Manager 1)
Responsible for the overall co-ordination and overall management of the
Event

Responsible for liaison with the emergency services as a member of the
on-site incident management team

Responsible for co-ordination and sighting of event infrastructure and for
communication with contractor’s onsite.

Responsible for liaising with the Head of Security and Emergency
Services

Responsible for all site infrastructures.

Designated Premises License Holder

Safety Officers Roger and Margaret Buckley

Decisions in relation to Implementation of Event Management Plan.
Communication and liaison with key agencies.

Licison with key personnel and the Safety and Security Staff team
Manage stewarding and security operation

Managing the traffic management plan. Tasks also to include vehicle
movement on site and off the event site.

e Liaison with the Head of Security and Emergency Services

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 64 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



Event Manager 2&3 John Greatorex & Albert Evans

Responsible for the Liaison with:

Responsible for the overall co-ordination and overall management of the
Event in the absence of Manager 1

Responsible for liaison with the emergency services as a member of the
on-site incident management team and for the overall direction.

Security Manager  Security 1 - Natasha Brown NS UK

Responsible for areas designated

Responsible for liaison with the emergency services as a member of the
on-site incident management team

Welfare Show Time Events Ltd

Lost Child Welfare Officer

First Aid First Aid will be present on site, provided by RTC Medical Solutions

5.2. Statement of Intent

We, the organisers, Show Time Events (hereinafter referred to as STE), understand that the Health
and Safety at Work Act 1974 places duties of care on us as an employer, a designer, and
controller of premises. We undertake to ensure, as far as reasonably practicable, safety of our
employees, sub-contractors and public aftending the event. We will ensure compliance with all
legal requirements laid out in Regulations made under the Act. We will follow as far as reasonably
practicable the guidance laid down in The Event Safety Guide HSG195.

a

00 D0 D

O

STE will ensure that sufficient funds and resources are made available to discharge our
duties of care

STE will assess known hazards and quantify the risks which these present; if they cannot be
removed they will be managed so not to constitute unacceptable risks

Provide sufficient fraining and instruction

STE will appoint competent contractors

STE will monitor our contractors to ensure they discharge their duties of care

STE will ensure adequate welfare provision for employees, contractors, performers and
public

STE will provide an adequate crowd management system, security and stewarding
arrangements

STE will where appropriate have in place a traffic management system

STE will have adequate communication links with the emergency services and partners and
will co-operate with all

STE will seek advice when necessary from partners and independent experts to supplement
our knowledge and experience

STE will provide safe access and egress to and from the event site
STE will have an accident reporting and investigation procedure

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 65 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



a STE will ensure report any accidents to STE Health and Safety Team if required under the
Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995

o STE have both employers liability and Public liability insurance as appropriate to the size
and nature of the event

a STE recognises that no safety measures are going to be effective unless they receive the full
support of employees, contractors and performers. STE all parties to co-operate with the
control measures put in place, report all hazards and incidents, and play their role in
ensuring their own safety, that of fellow event workers and the public to make a safe event

5.3. On Site Communication

Radios communications will be used for the duration of the event. A copy of the communication
contact sheet will be issued to all radio holders. Key personnel will have communication whilst the
Event Manager/Safety Officer will be in communication at all fimes with the Head of Security.
5.4. Locations/Communications

Emergency Services — Contact via Mobile

Event Manager — Radio and Mobile

Security - Radio and Mobile phone

5.5. Communication with the crowd

Stewards and Security staff will verbally relay any information with the crowd. In the case of an
emergency, Loud Hailers will be used.

On site PA system can also be used as a contingency/ back up for announcements

5.6. Communication with the Press and Media

Main press communication will be prior to the event and will be co-coordinated by Alaric Neville

6.0. Traffic Management

Traffic access to the site will be limited to contractors vehicles only via Victoria Promenade
entrance.

The public will be encouraged to park in the Town Centre Car Parks and on street parking.

A Red route for emergency services will be maintained along from the Park Avenue South
enfrance.

7.0 Health and Safety
7.1. Medical Plan (Appendix A)

RTC Medical Solutions will be providing First Aid facilities at the covering the operational hours of
the Event.

6 First Aiders and a paramedic response will be on site for the duration — The Medical plan having
been assessed using The Purple Guide Risk Assessment

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 66 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



7.2. Ambulance

RTC Medical Solutions will be providing First Aid facilities at the Site covering the operational hours
of the Event.

4 First Aiders and paramedic response will be on site for the duration — The Medical plan have
been assessed using The Purple Guide Risk Assessment

7.3. Hospitals

Designated hospital is Northampton General Hospital. Only 1 mile from the venue site
7.4 Covid19 - Virus

At this time the threat of a further spike in reported cases and fatalities is always possible.

Governmental guidance is in place at the moment banning any open air event where there is an
increased potential for fransference of the virus through social interaction remains.

Asa company Show Time Events have undertaken a specific risk assessment relating to the threats
that are potentially in place and the action to be taken to reduce that risk to as low as is
reasonably practicable.

From that document we have produced a company policy specific to the company and the
action to be taken in the event of the need for social interaction to deal with incidents.

The company have also appended a Method Statement specific to the risk from Covi-19 virus.
The government stance as well as the emergency services observations will be constantly under
review, and this policy, risk assessment and method will be amended to reflect the stance and
direction to be taken.

7.5. Fire Risk Assessment (Appendix B)

The power to the stage, and marquees will be provided by Diesel Generators, with cable runs
being placed to the rear.

The stage will have its own generator and cabling will be self- contained.
Lighting towers will be self-contained
Catering outlets will be required to provide their own electrical services.

All caterers will be providing their Risk Assessment and insurance details, along with food hygiene
certification

Northamptonshire Fire and Rescue Service will be advised of the event and provided with a copy
of the Fire Risk Assessments.

There is a Fire Safety Plan in place

All stewards and security staff will be briefed on the actions to take and the procedures to enforce
in the event of a fire.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 67 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



Appliances that are mobilised to incidents will be informed by control where the location of the
incident. In the event of a major incident the emergency services rendezvous point will be
decided as required.

INCIDENTS REQUIRING FIRE & RESCUE RESPONSE

If a Fire or other incident requiring Fire & Rescue presence occurs, the Safety Officer will inform Fire
& Rescue altered via the 999 system initially giving the type of incident grid location and RVP point
for access. This can also be backed up via Police Control via the service control rooms.

7.6. Policing

This is an event which will not be formally policed, but the attendance of Community Policing
Resources and Community Support Officers is anficipated.

7.6. Waste Management

Waste Management will be carried out by Contractors. In the interlude and after the event, any
rubbish accumulated will be removed by the onsite event management team.

Euro Bins and Wheelie bins will be provided and collected.

Litter picking will be operate the following morning after the event

7.7. Accident Reporting

Any accident should be reported to the nearest steward who will radio for a First Aider and inform
the Safety Officer.

First Aiders will have access to ‘Report of Accident/Dangerous Occurrence’ forms, and a steward
will fill one of these out at the time of the incident. The injured person must complete these forms.

7.8. Risk Assessments (Appendix C)

Risk Assessments have been completed for site activities including the build, event and
breakdown phases.

Staff will operate to the guidance given in the Method statement (Appendix G)
7.9. Disabled Area/Access

Disabled access will be via The Victoria Promenade enfrance,

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 68 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



8.0. Security

8.1. General
NS UK will be providing the overall security and stewarding for the event.

Security personnel will be allocated specific duties and will be briefed on their duties prior to the
event. The manager will issue all Security Company staff with a summary of their individual duties,
and a list of actions to take upon the discovery of an incident likely to endanger public safety.

All security staff will be instructed to report any incident that may endanger public safety direct to
the Head of Security who will pass this on the Event Safety Officer. If the security staff are not in
possession of a radio, they will be instructed to inform their supervisor, or the nearest Security
personnel in possession of a radio. Any company so engaged will have tfrained and certificated
staff to undertake the role.

There is in place a stewarding and security disposition and operations plan

8.2. Clothing and Security Staff

Staffing will be provided as per the Stewarding and Security Plan. There will be qualified and
frained SIA Door Supervisor staff and stewards.

The staff will be fully briefed and issued with incident sheets (appendices H)

Staff will be made aware of the latest guidelines on Counter Terrorism and will be compliant with
any instructions given.

The police and organisers have been provided with a Statement of Intent. This will set out the
roles and responsibilities. (Appendix L)

Stewards and security will be wearing a Blue uniform. All SIA Door Supervisors will be high visibility
showing a SIA badge

8.3. Crowd Control Management/Venue capacity (Appendix E)

Venue Capacity — Capacity for the event will be up to 4999 at any one time

Ingress and Egress arrangements:

Access to the venue site will be via the Park Avenue South and Abington Park Crescent
entrances.

Ticket sales will be at the main entrance which is located within the park some 50metres from the
Park Avenue South entrance
In terms of people; controlling the audience, reading the situation and putting any necessary
systems into practice will alleviate crowd management issues. These include:

a Allowing good entry and exit for crowd movement.

o Awareness of audience capacity/control measures.
o Understanding audience profile/crowd dynamics.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 69 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



The Event Manager/Safety Officer will monitor the situation with regard to crowd movement and
management.

Dynamic Risk assessments will be carried out and communicated. As issues of major significance
will be raised with Police command via 999 or 101

CRITICAL CROWD DENSITY

If critical crowd density (CCD) is observed, or is being approached, and actions to prevent further
spectators reaching the affected area(s) are inadequate, then expansion / sterile areas are
available. Stewards will conduct spectators in a controlled manner into the expansion / sterile
areas under the direction of the Safety Officer. The Safety Officer is responsible to ensure that it is
safe for spectators to enter expansion / sterile areas

Stewards will be located at peak crowd times at strategic points to observe for signs of CCD and
to conduct spectators into the expansion areas in the arenas under the direction of the Safety
Officer.

Audience profile is:

e There will be a 50:50 male to female ratio.
e Main age range from 10 - 50
e Persons with an interest in entertainment utilizing fribute bands.
Likely Crowd Dynamics:
Generally well behaved. Enjoying the ambience.
Normally persons attending will have an interest in tribute bands

[ )
[ )
¢ Inclement weather will see significant audience movement throughout the site.
e From 5.30pm crowds will be expected to arrive.

9.0. Services

9.1. Water

Bottled water will be available to purchase from the event catering units.
9.2. Electricity

There will be one mobile generator will be used to power the main command area. Tower Lights
will be will be powered by the generators.

Stage will provide its own generator

Catering units will provide own generators

9.3.Welfare
Bottled water will be available to purchase from the event catering units.

Toilets will be located inside the festival site

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 70 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



Fire Safety

The park is bounded by Park Avenue South and Abington Park Crescent,

All exit routes will be kept free of any refuse or obstacles.

All on site staff are trained will be trained in emergency procedures and radio codes.

There will be fire points throughout the site. This will be agreed with the Safety Officer and
Northants Fire and Rescue Service prior to the set- up of the venue. This will be highlighted on the
plans.

All fire extinguishers will be fully charged and updated, dedicated staff will be frained on how to
use fire extinguisher prior to the event

Disabled Customers

The site has the following for those with disability;

Disabled toilets x 2

Stewards will pay particular attention to disabled patrons throughout their attendance

Vulnerable members of the audience including wheelchair users and those with disabilities will
receive particular attention from stewards during an emergency.

The First Aid Centre also acts as the place where a lost child will be taken.
Lighting

All exit walkways are illuminated.

Safety Certificates

We will provide a full temporary electrical certificate from a qualified on site electrician to NICEIC
(17the edition IEE regs 2012)

Test loading details on all the temporary electrical supply will be available

Details on all marquee wall linings to BS 5438 & BS 5867. Contractor is a member of MUTA will be
made available.

We will provide all necessary safety certifications for any other equipment onsite if requested

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 71 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



10.0. Contingency

10.1. Reducing Crowd Density

If an area has been overcrowded or critical crowd density is observed, then attempts will be
made to prevent pedestrian access to that area. Use of a steward, and if necessary, the halting
of all activities in that area will be considered in an aftempt to ease crowd pressure in that area.
The crowd density will be monitored and controlled by Security personnel and Stewards, and

access to the area will be restricted once the crowd has reached an acceptable level.
Communication and consultation with the Safety Officer to ensure crowd density is paramount.

10.2 Evacuation Procedure

Evacuation Procedures

In the event of an emergency there will be a Public Address Announcement using temporary PA
system from the front of house. Otherwise Radio communication will be used to inform all stewards
and security:

Aftention, Aftention, all stewards to posts

Code Red (Fire),

Blue (Crowd disorder),
Black (Suspect package) or

Stewards and Security staff will be provided with details of positions they are to attend in the event
of an evacuation; these will be included in their briefing details. On hearing this, be alert for further
messages.

Stand down Message
Attention, Attention all stewards can now return to normal duties.
Evacuation Message

PA announcement/Loud Hailers

Ladies and gentlemen due to circumstances beyond our control it is not possible to continue with
this event, please leave the site.

Back Up

The Safety Officer will have loud hailers to use in the event of electrical failure
Stewards will direct the public away from the risks.

10.3. Lost/Found Children and Vulnerable Adults (Appendix F)
Steward/security personnel will escort lost children to the Main Entrance Marquee
Code Disney will be used for lost child

Details will be passed to the Safety Officer and head of security. Stewards Announcements will be
made that the lost child can be located in the First Aid Area.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 72 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



10.4. Lost Personnel/Meeting Points
Adults who become separated from their group will be advised to go to the Main Enfrance.
10.5. Failure of Public Address System

If one of the public systems fails, loud hailers will be used as necessary. The loud hailers will be
available from the Main entrance control point.

10.6. Discovery of Suspicious Package (Appendix D)

Any suspicious packages will be reported to the Event Safety Officer, who will make any decision
in this regard.

11.0. Emergency Arrangements

11.1. Mqjor Incident

In the event of a major incident the safety officer and other emergency agencies will co-ordinate
the response to the incident.

Major Incident Definition

A major incident is an emergency that requires the implementation of special arrangements to
respond to a situation affecting or threatening the well-being of large numbers of people.

Procedure for suspected/potential major incident

Assessment

The Safety Officer/Event Manager and any senior emergency services officer (if present) will make
an assessment as appropriate as to whether special arrangements are required.

Decision

The Safety Officer (orif the Emergency Services Senior Officer present has declared control) will
declare a major incident. This will be documented on the Transfer of Responsibility Form

Inform

All key personnel and stewards will be informed via the Public Address or radio networks using
coded message.

Action
Staff will have designated positions to attend in the event of the decision being made
Site Orientation

The site has an alpha/numeric site plan and staff will be advised to refer to grid positions when
identifying issues

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 73 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



Abandonment

Decision to be made by Safety Officer/Event Manager or Emergency Service commander
(if responsibility transferred).

Evacuation
In the event of the need for evacuation, the decision will be that of the Safety Officer/Event

Manager or Senior Emergency Service personnel and stewards will direct people off the site,
ensuring that they are moved away from the danger and away from RVPs.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 74 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



SHOWT
VE

Er—
E S

=

|
NT

Appendices

Appendix A — Medical Plan

Appendix B — Fire Plan

Appendix C - Risk Assessments

Appendix D- Stewarding/Security and Bomb Threat Risk Plan
Appendix E - Capacity Calculations

Appendix F — Lost Found Child/Vulnerable Adult

Appendix G — Method Statement

Appendix H — Incident Sheet

Appendix J — Covid-19 Policy

Appendix K — Covid - 19 Method Statement

Appendix L — Covid-19 Risk Assessment

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 75 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



SHOWTIME 3

EVENTS

Appendix A
Party in the Park

Medical Plan

Information

1. The Party in the Park takes place between 29t August and 30t of August 2020.
2. This eventis being held at Abington Park Northampton.
3. This commences at 11am and will be finished by 11.00 pm on Saturday and Sunday.

4. This medical plan relates to the event and the expected crowd size.

Intention

1. To provide trained first aid staff commensurate with risk of this event.

2. To provide a static and mobile response to first aid requirements.

Method

1.

The Party in the Park (hereinafter referred to as STE) will provide facilities at the event
designated for the provision of First Aid to visitors. This will consist of a 6 staff. However with the
need for additional vigilance, it is likely that there will be an increase in the number of medical
staff fo deal with any potential incidents of suspect Covid-19 virus.

There is a Policy, risk Assessment and Method statement relevant to Covid-19 virus at
appendices J, K and L.

The requirements will be determined closer to the event date to reflect legislative, and
guidance rules prevalent at the time.

A treatment vehicle and response capability. Any requirement for communication between
First Aid control and Event Control will be via radio or in person. This will have six members of
staff in situ at all time.

There will be sufficient First Aid trained staff present to deal with the first response to any
medical issues as listed above.

Access for East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS) determined by the incident
will be via Main Enfrance Park Avenue South where they will be met by a steward and
escorted in.

The First Aid facility will be designated an Emergency Casualty Centre, to be used for triage
and accommodation for the injured in the event of a large scale emergency.

The event shall have First Aid Staff provided by RTC Medical Solutions as well as vehicles at a
ratio of one first aider per thousand spectators.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 76 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



9. First Aiders will have no other duties or responsibilities, will remain at post until stood down by
the Safety Officer.

10. RTC Medical Solutions will in the event of a major incident come under the command of the
Senior Ambulance Officer when in attendance.
First Aid Responsibilities
This will be provided by RTC Medical Solutions.
1. Torespond to all requests for First Aid assistance
2. Be responsible for staffing First Aid facilities and initial treatment of casualties.
3. To have paramedic trained personnel equipped to deal with more serious incidents.
4. To provide fransportation to the local hospital thereby reducing EMAS involvement.
5. To contact Ambulance Control via the 999 system if required.
6. To ensure First Aid teams are located around the site.
7. Be atsite from 10am until close.
8. Trained to arecognised first aid standard.
9. To ensure that the Event Organisers and Safety Officer are informed of any incidents which
require removal of persons from site by ambulance or require notification to authorities
under Health and Safety Legislation.

Evacuation Procedures

1. Inthe event of an emergency there will be a Public Address Announcement from the
Control Point and usage of Megaphones or radios.

e Aftention, Attention, all stewards to posts Code Red (Fire), Blue (Crowd disorder), Black
(Suspect package) or Green(Medical Emergency)

On hearing this be alert for further messages.
Stand down Message
e Aftention, Aftention all stewards can now return to normal duties.
Evacuation Message
PA announcement

Ladies and gentlemen due to circumstances beyond our control it is not possible to continue with
this event, please leave the site

Back Up

The Safety Officer will have loud hailers to use in the event of electrical failure
Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 77 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



RVP

RVP 1 - Park Avenue South entrance to park

RVP 2 — Abington Park Crescent entrance to park
Communications

1. Staoff to be issued with radios

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 78 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



SHOWTIME g’__l

EVENTS
Appendix B

Party in the Park

Fire Safety Plan

Information

. Then Event takes place between 29" August and 30" August 2020 between 11am and
1Tpm on Saturday and Sunday.

2. This eventis being held at Abington Park and is organised and managed by STE

3. This fire safety plan relates to the Access and facilities on site for the Event

Intention

1. To provide guidance and instructions as well as equipment commensurate with risk of this
event.

2. To provide a first response to fire related issues.

3. To have in place a plan to enable Northamptonshire Fire and Rescue to access the site
and deal with any fire or structural issues causing the least disruption.

Method

1.

The Party in the Park (hereinafter referred to as STE) will ensure that all persons participating at
the event as stall holders, or entertainment will have in place adequate equipment and plans
to deal with any minor fires. We will request as part of their contractual agreement for them
to provide Fire Risk assessments which will comply with the requirements of STE.

STE will ensure that all stall holders will as part of their arrangements with the stallholders,
fairground and entertainers be provided with the STE policy for the usage of the site and this
will include risk assessments for high danger usage equipment (LPG) and electrical wiring.

STE will ensure that any electrical supplies fed by generators are certificated and any re-
fuelling takes place in a restricted area.

STE will ensure that any companies who attend the site will have in place an adequate
supply of staff and equipment to deal in the first instance with any fire related issues. They will
be required to provide as part of the contractual agreement to record the details of the staff
and equipment on site.

Access for Northamptonshire Fire and Rescue Service will be as follows;

Park Avenue South walkway entrance to park RVP 1 Abington Park Crescent walkway
entrance to park RVP 2

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 79 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



6. A Red Route will be via Park Avenue South and the metalled roadway and kept clear of
vehicles and pedestrians to facilitate free passage of Emergency Vehicles. This red route will
be shown on the provided site plan.

7. The First Aid facility will be shown on the site plan and will be located at The Entrance Point at
Park Avenue South.

8. In the event of a major incident, dependent on the type, staff employed as stewards will
come under the command of the Senior Fire, Police or Ambulance Officer once in
attendance. A Major Incident Plan is in place and will be complimentary to the Emergency
Services Plans.

STE Responsibilities

1. To ensure that all stallholders or entertainment providers have in place Firefighting
equipment of the right type to deal with any potential incidents. These groups have been
asked to provide details of Risk Assessments, which have to be completed to the
satisfaction of STE.

2. To ensure that all participants as stallholders, and entertainment suppliers will be sent a
copy of the STE Spectator Safety Policy and Risk assessments and guidance regarding fire
risks and provide their own Fire Risk assessments.

3. Following these Risk Assessments the STE fire risk plans and assessments will be amended to
reflect any significant findings or risks.

Evacuation Procedures

1. Inthe event of an emergency there will be a Public Address Announcement from the
stewards via loud hailers.

e Aftention, Attention, all stewards to posts Code Red (Fire), Blue(Crowd disorder), Black
(Suspect package) or Green(Medical Emergency)
o Stewards and Security staff will be provided with details of positions they are to attend in
the event of an evacuation, these will be included in their personal duty cards.
On hearing this be alert for further messages.
Stand down Message
e Aftention, Aftention all stewards can now return to normal duties.
Evacuation Message
Announcement
Ladies and gentlemen due to circumstances beyond our conftrol it is not possible to continue with
this event, please leave the site

Back Up

The Safety Officer will have loud hailers to use for the event
Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 80 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



Stewards will direct the public away from the risks

RVP
RVP 1 — Park Avenue South by entrance to Park

RVP 2 — Abington Park Crescent by entrance to park

Communications

1. Staff to be issued with radios
2. Critical staff will be in possession of Mobile Phones.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 81 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



(4

SHOWTIME =4
EVENTS
Appendix C - Risk Assessments
Party in the Park

This event takes place at Abington Park between 29 and 30 August 2020. It will involve @
large number of beers for sale for on and off the site. It will also have live entertainment, ,
and food outlets.

The area will be securely fenced and will have manned entrance points and will be
licensed by Northampton Borough Council

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 82 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



SHO

=
-

wnlTl
4]

BUILD UP TO
EVENT

Unplanned hazard

Accident

Injury to
person or
damage to
venue

10

Site Visits to
monitor risks
Safety Advisory
Group Mtgs
Consultation
with relevant
agencies and
parties

Method
Statements and
Risk
Assessments
from contractors

Selection of
Contractors

Contractor Not
Fully competent

Accident/
Incident

Injury to
person or
damage to
venue

10

Professional
Recommendatio
n

Experienced
Contractors
engaged in the
works on site
Method
Statements
CONTRACTORS
RA’S METHOD
STATEMENTS
SUBMITTED
BEFORE EVENT

GET IN

Installation of
Temporary
Electrical Supplies

Live Electricity

Electric
Shock
Electrocutio
n

Burns
Major Injury
Fatality

SN

Qualified and
Approved
Contractors
Certification

O -

Fatigue

Manual Handling

Excessive Working
Hours

Lifting and placing
barrels in position

Human error

Lack of
mechanical
lifters

Injury,
Fatality, Team
member down

Usage of
working in
pairs

15

15

Managers to
monitor staff
working hours
Rest Breaks

Planned
programme
which identifies
build
programme and
time scales
Managers to
monitor and
provide
equipment

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

83 thebuckleys765@gmail.com




Impact on road
and pedestrian
movement around
Venue

Vehicles/Pedestria
ns

Traffic
Accident

Injury Death

25

Operational
Schedule in
Security Crowd
Management
Plan in place
Access & Egress
clearly marked
and staffed

O =

Vehicles Striking
personnel

Staff and Public

Accident

Serious injury

25

Security and
Steward Briefed
Staff to wear
High Vis
clothing
Adequate
Lighting

O =

Extreme Weather
Conditions

Cold or hot

Fatigue,
Loss of
concentratio
n

Personal
injury,

Update on
Weather Reports
Consultation
with Production
Management
Staff briefing

Waste
Management

Waste becoming
an ignition source.

Fire

Multiple and
Personal

injury

15

Waste
management
procedure in
place

Venue Manager
to monitor waste
management
contact Venue
Manager if build
up

Ensure Fire
Exits are not
obstructed Staff
instructed to
advise on build

up

Out of hours
working

Access to welfare
facilities

Injury

Site Briefings
regarding times
of work each
day.

First Aid
personnel
available during
working hours

Selection of Staff
and Contractors

Abuse

Incident

Injury

Checks and
recommendation
s of contractors

Personal
Protective
Equipment

Inappropriate
/Absence of PPE

Personal
Injury

Crew members
provided with
PPE.

Safety Officer/
Manager to
monitor
Contracted Staff
trained in PPE
All staff briefed

Temporary
Structures
Fencing barriers
Temporary
Offices

Stage

Collapse

Injury

10

Employed
professional
contractors to
industry
standard
Production/Safet

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

4 thebuckleys765@gmail.com




Food Outlets

y officer to sign
completion
Design and
Build
Certification
from
Contractors
Erection by
Qualified staff.

Lone Working

Staff/Contractor’s
become lost

Injury

Radio
communication
throughout set.
Mobile
communication
when radio
comms not in
place

Staff issued with
radios and
schedule to
advise of
working areas

Lack of protection
for Hands and feet

Personal
Injury

Venue Manager
to ensure only
relevant
personnel on
areas they
should be

Staff to be
checked to
ensure
appropriate foot
and hand wear

Fairground

Trip Hazards
Cables

Working at height

Lifting equipment

Electricity

Cables dug
in or flown

Staff to use
PPE hard
hats

High
Visibility
jackets
Gloves
Exclusion
Areas

Safety Shoes

Mechanical
failure

PAT testing

Electrical
certification

Personal
injury

Falls or
equipment
failure

Failure and
injury

Death or
serious injury

12

Pre inspection
checks

Trained staff
Checks on
provision and
usage

LOLER
compliance
Staff trained

Compliance
with ADIPS and
cerification
DOC

Trained staff and
compliance
Trained staff

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

85 thebuckleys765@gmail.com




Temporary Units
Control area
Catering units
Portable toilets

Trip hazards
Power sources
Fire

Rubbish

Injury,
Food hygiene

Site plans
created signed
off by SAG
Units located in
areas of low
density

Units
dimensions
provided in
advance

Units groups at
rear or by fence
lines to prevent
unauthorised
access

Toilets provided
in numbers as
set out in Guides

LPG

Fire Explosion
used by caterers

Anxiety,
Minor/Major
Injuries,
fatalities

15

All catering
Units providing
Fire Risk
Assessment
Units to be
checked by
Safety Officer
Staff alert and
trained to usage
and changing of
bottles

Staff alert to
action to be
taken in event of
fire

O =

Waste Storage

Fire

Anxiety,
Minor/Major
Injuries,
fatalities

15

Covered Euro
bins and
Wheelie bins to
be provided.
Build up waste
monitored by
manager

Waste removal
schedule in
place

Generators

Fire & Electric
Shock

Anxiety,
minor &
major injuries

15

Generators
located and
secured off from
general public,
Diesel
generators only
on site. Site
power sign off
before open to
general public.
Generators
provided with
certification

O =

Cable Runs

Trips

Minor Injuries

Minimum cable
runs

Where possible
not in public
areas cables to

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

86 thebuckleys765@gmail.com




be covered or
dug in to
ground. or flown

Portacabins

Fire

Injuries,

15

Cabins hired in
from reputable
company
Portacabins to
be electrical
tested

Fire Equipment
made available
Staff advised on
usage of
equipment

O =

Catering Areas

Fire

Major
Injuries,
fatalities

15

Caterers provide
fire risk
assessment and
certification,
Staff trained on
reducing risk

O =

Work Related
Stress

Injury to
employees
Sickness

Lack of
knowledge
and staff
cover.

20

Management to
monitor staff for
stress related
symptoms —
anxiety, self
esteem, loss of
concentration
H&S officer to
monitor staff
members

O =

Welfare & First
Aid

Lack of welfare &
first aid provisions

111 health

Monitoring by
Managers
First Aid on site

Storage of
equipment &
materials

Falls, trips,
collisions

Personal
injury

12

Storage area in
control cabins
Storage of items
in such a way as
to provide
collapse

The Event

Party in the Park

Crowd ingress

Access to
site via
footpaths
and road
Width of
gates and
access area
provided
Staff
training

Anxiety,
injury,
fatalities due
to crushing

15

Stewarding
presence
Robust
Vigilance

Staff trained in
crowd
management
Research in to
crowd dynamics
for each concert
Security Crowd
Management
plan in place
Calculations
provided on
entry capacities

O =

Crowd

Surging

Anxiety,
injury,
fatalities
However
history

15

Trained Security
and Stewarding
presence.
Vigilance

Staff trained in

O =

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

[ thebuckleys765@gmail.com




suggests this
as being
unlikely

crowd
management
Research in to
crowd dynamics
for each concert
Security Crowd
Management
plan in place

Loud noise

Damage to
hearing

Injury to
persons

Signage
provided
regarding noise
Stewards to
wear hearing
protection
Rotation of staff
in high risk
areas

Crowd

Fighting

Anxiety,
injury,
fatalities

15

Stewards trained
in crowd
management
Security
Presence

Signs displayed
regarding
articles not
allowed
Security Crowd
Management
plan in place
Spectator profile
suggest unlikely
situation

Crowd

overcrowdin
g

Anxiety,
injury,
fatalities

15

Capacity
nominally set at
5000

Fenced areas
Stewards
monitoring
crowd flows
Security Crowd
Management
plan in place
Site plan
designed to cater
for over 14000

Crowd dispersal

Congestions at
egress points

Crowd
pressure
causing
crushing

Anxiety,
injury,
fatalities

10

staff to monitor
flow

Crowd Pressure

Crushing

Anxiety,
injury,
fatalities
Previous
experience
suggests low
risk

Security Crowd
Management
plan in place
Crowds
monitored
during dispersal

Uneven ground,
pot holes

Trips

Anxiety,
injury,

Pre Show check
of entrances and
exits

Cordon off area
if hazard

Trip hazard are
covered

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

88 thebuckleys765@gmail.com




Lighting in exit
areas

Rubbish/Debris Articles Anxiety, 5 3 | 15 | Stewardingand |3 |2
being injury, Security Plan in
thrown place

SHOWT
V E

E
E TS

14

I
N

Risk assessment - Food Concessions

Unit Name

Contact No

Location

Note — In order to comply with relevant fire safety legislation you MUST complete a Fire Risk assessment of
your stall or unit. The risk assessment needs to iden’rifé’rhe Fire hazards and persons aft risk, and you must

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



attempt to remove or reduce these risks and protect people from fire. This document needs to be
completed and returned to the organisers and must be made available for inspection by the Fire
Authorities.

Question Yes No

Do you have an inspection/gas safety cerfificate for the appliances and pipe work
and are all those connections made with crimped fastenings?

Are cooking appliances fixed securely on a firm non- combustible heat insulating
base and surrounded by shields of similar material on three sides?e

Do the shields provide an adequate and effective barrier of at least 600mm
between the heat source and any combustible material?

Have you ensured that no combustible materials can be blown against, or fall onto
the apparatuse

Are the LPG cylinders kept outside, or within a specific ventilated unit, secured in the
upright position and out of reach of the general public?

Do you ensure that only those cylinders in use are kept at your unit/stall?

Are the gas cylinders readily accessible to enable easy isolation in case of an
emergency?

Are the cylinders located away from enfrances, emergency exits and circulation
areqas?

Do you ensure that the gas supply is isolated at the cylinder, as well as the
appliance when the apparatus is not in use and appliances fitted with full flame
safety devices on all burners that are not readily visible?2

Do you ensure replacement cylinders are fitted in the open air away from the
sources of ignition?2

Is a member of staff, appropriately frained in the safe use of LPG, present at the
stall/unit at all times?

Are the structures, roofing, walls and fittings of your stall/unit flame retardant?

Where necessary, are there sufficient directional signs indicating the appropriate
escape route and do they comply with current regulations?

Are the exits maintained available, unobstructed, and unlocked at all fimes when
the stall/unit is in use?¢

If you infend to frade in the hours of darkness, do you have sufficient lighting inside
or outside your stall/unite

If the normal lighting failed would you be able to make a safe exite

Do you have an adequate number of fire extinguishers/fire blankets available in
prominent positions and available for use?

Has the fire fighting equipment been tested in the Iast 12 months?

Have your staff been instructed on how to operate the fire fighting equipment
provided?

Have your staff been instructed as to the action they have to take should an
incident occur i.e. how to raise the alarm, evacuate the stall/unit and the exit
locations?

Are you aware that pefrol generators are not permitted on site?

Have you identified all ignition sources and ensured that they are kept away from
combustible material?

Have you identified combustible material that could promote fire spread and
reduced the risk of being involved in an incident?e

Do you have sufficient litter bins, is the rubbish disposed of correctly and out of reach
of the public?e

If any staff sleep in the stall/unit is there a working smoke detector and a clear exit
route?

Food Hygiene Certification for staff and unit

Public Liability Insurance

Training Records

Fire Extinguishers commensurate 1o risk

if the answer to any of the above questions is no, please detail the actions you have taken to remedy the
situation

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 90 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



Stallholder/Responsible person

Designation

Company

SHOWT
V E

E
E TS

4

I
N

Risk assessment - Trade Stalls

Unit Name

Contact No

Location

Note — In order to comply with relevant fire safety legislation you MUST complete a Fire Risk assessment of
your stall or unit The risk assessment needs to identify the Fire hazards and persons at risk, and you must

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 91 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



attempt to remove or reduce these risks and protect people from fire. This document needs to be
completed and returned to the organisers and must be made available for inspection by the Fire
Authorities.

Question Yes No

Are the exits adequately provided for the numbers of persons within the stall/unit?

Where necessary are there sufficient directional signs indicating the appropriate
escape route and do they comply with current regulations?

Are the exits maintained available, unobstructed, and unlocked at all times when
the stall/unit is in use?¢

If the normal lighting failed would you be able to make a safe exite

Do you have an adequate number of fire extinguishers/fire blankets available in
prominent positions and available for use?

Has the fire fighting equipment been tested in the Iast 12 months?

Have your staff been instructed on how to operate the fire fighting equipment
provided?

Have your staff been instructed as to the action they have to take should an
incident occur i.e. how to raise the alarm, evacuate the stall/unit and the exit
locations?

Have you identified combustible material that could promote fire spread and
reduced the risk of being involved in an incident?e

Have you identified all ignition sources and ensured that they are kept away from
combustible material?

Are the structure, roofing, walls and fittings of your stall/unit flame retardant?

If any staff sleep in the stall/unit is there a working smoke detector and a clear exit
route?

Are you aware that you must not stock or sell certain items i.e. fireworks, flares,
candles, tea lightse

Do you have sufficient litter bins, is the rubbish disposed of correctly and out of reach
of the public?

Are you aware that petrol generators are not permitted on site?

IF YOU USE LPG

Do you have an inspection/gas safety cerfificate for the appliances and pipe work
and are all those connections made with crimped fastenings?

Are the LPG cylinders kept outside, or within a specific ventilated unit, secured in the
upright position and out of reach of the general public?

Are cooking appliances fixed securely on a firm non combustible heat insulating
base and surrounded by shields of similar material on three sides?

Are the cylinders located away from enfrances, emergency exits and circulation
areqs?

Do you ensure that the gas supply is isolated at the cylinder, as well as the
appliance when the apparatus is not in use and appliances fitted with full flame
safety devices on all burners that are not readily visible?2

Do you ensure that only those cylinders in use are kept at your unit/stall?

Is a member of staff, appropriately trained in the safe use of LPG, present at the
stall/unit at all times?

Public Liability Insurance

If the answer to any of the above questions is no, please detail the actions you have taken to remedy the
situation

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 92 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



Stallholder/Responsible person

......................................................................................................... Signature

o (1T B N [ o 0T PP
DO e

(B N[e] ale ] o] IO
(@] 2 0] o 012N

SHOWTIME ST
EVENTS
Risk Assessments
Location: STE Northampton Assessment No: STE /01/20

Manager: David Bailey Assessor: Roger Buckley

Date: 11.06,2020 Review Date 11.06.2021

Activity Assessed: Usage of Liquid Propane Gas

e Comments:

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 93 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



e The use of LPG as a cooking medium is universal but it has some inherent dangers, in order to reduce
the risk from using such gas then the following areas need to be considered;

e That the cylinders are located in a safe place and have the necessary safety devices in to protect the

hoses and pipe work.

That the cylinders are not tampered with.

That the equipment is regularly serviced and records retained for inspection.

That any persons working with the equipment is trained and competent to do so.

That operating and emergency instructions are known to the operators.

No smoking whilst changing cylinders.

Children and vehicles to be kept away from the installations.

Cylinders are correctly stored away from heat, in the open, in a well ventilated area, away from

occupied building.

Cylinders stored upright.

e Area kepft clear of combustibles.

Who is exposed to these hazards please tick appropriate boxes.

Employees X Agency Staff X
Elderly X Lone Workers

Visitors X Contractors X
Young Workers X Delivery Personnel X
Special Needs X New/Expectant Mums

Others - detail

What are the Hazards and Risks to the above?

H High Risk Likely fo occur and serious injuries likely
M Medium Risk Could occur and injuries could be serious
L Low Risk Unlikely to occur and minor injury would be the outcome
Are there any special working practices that need to be considered?
1. Lone Working 5. Non routine practices
2. Access Difficulties 6. Contamination Areas
3. Hot Ol 7. Contact with vehicles.
4. Spillages/Wet floors 8. Other — use of LPG H
Are there any physical agents that persons are likely to come into contact with?
9. Electricity 14. Arc Flash/UV Light
10.Fire H 15. Pressure Systems
11.Hot/Cold objects 16. Gas- LPG H
12.Noise/Vibration 17. Other -
13.Animals
Are there risks involving Manual Handling?
18.Handling of loads 20.Steep Stairs

19.Use of lifting aids

Is there arisk of Physical Injury resulting from the following areas?

21. Assaults/Violence 27 .Falls from height
22. Portable equipment 28.Sharps

23. Hand Tools 29 Transportation
24. Large equipment 30.Falling objects
25. Machine parts-moving 31.0ther -

26. Slips, trips and falls 32.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 94 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



Are you deadling Hazardous Substances or exposed to germs?

33. Contact with chemicals 38. Other
34 Bacteria efc. 39.
35.Dust/fumes/gases/etc. 40.
36.Vermin/Weils disease 47,
37.Zoonoftic diseases

What is your working Environment?

42 Working outside

L 46. Excavation

43.Confined space

47. Extremes of temp.

44 .Access to First Aid

H 48. Ventilated area

45.Working Overhead

49. Grassed area

Do you require training?

50. Food Hygiene

54. COSHH

51.Basic Hand S

55. Lift Escape Procedures

52. Display Screen Equip

56. Evac Chair Usage

53. Cleaning

57. Usage of LPG

Are there any other issues to be considered?

58. Documentation

60. PPE

59. Signage

61.

What were the significant risks that you have identified? Please enter the details into the grid below and the
measures already in place to reduce or remove the risk or the action required to do so.

No Risk

Control Measures

By whom

By When

8/16 H o

That the cylinders are located in a
safe place and have the
necessary safety devices in to
protect the hoses and pipe work
That the cylinders are not
tampered with

That the equipment is regularly
serviced and records retained for
inspection

That any persons working with the
equipment is frained and
competent to do so

That operating and emergency
instructions are known to the
operators

No smoking whilst changing
cylinders

Children and vehicles to be kept
away from the installations
Cylinders are correctly stored
away from heat, in the open, in a
well ventilated area, away from
occupied buildings

Cylinders stored upright

Areda kept clear of combustibles

Organisers/Users

Prior to event

57 H °

No persons to use equipment

Organisers

Prior to event

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

95 thebuckleys765@gmail.com




unless fully trained

All tents will be required to provide
details of construction from Fire
Resistant material

Provision of Fire Extinguishers and
equipment relevant to usage will
be available in identified locations
Staff employed by STE will receive
fraining on types of equipment
and usage

Staff employed by STE will ensure
that there is no build up of
combustible materials

Organisers

Organisers

Organisers

Organisers

Prior to event

44 H .

First Aid Qualified Staff will be on
site to deal with injuries or
accidents in the first incident to
staff or spectators

RTC Medical
Solutions

Do we need to implement a safe system of work to carry out this task?

A REMINDER WHAT IS THE TASK THAT WE ARE TALKING ABOUT?

Task: Usage of LPG at STE

Y Permit No
Is there a significant riske
Is a permit to work required?
Are there designated work instructions? X

Do you need Personal Protective Equipment to carry out your task?

Equipment Y N Equipment Y N
Safety Helmet High Visibility Jackets
Eye Protection Gauntlets
Face Masks Gloves
Safety Footwear Ear Defenders
Respirators Anti Glare Screens
All Weather Clothing Procedures
Task Management
Additional Training X

Is there a need for any additional equipment to ensure your safety?
Equipment Y N

Barriers
Signs
Boards

Other — markings on roadways

In order to undertake this role are there any specific instructions that need to be followed?

Procedures;

e No staff will be permitted to use the equipment unless fully trained.
e Allstaff fo be aware that in the event of a fire involving LPG then no attempt should be made

to fight the fire, as canisters can explode.
e Ensure area is evacuated.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

96 thebuckleys765@gmail.com




SHOWTIME Q’_.l

EVENTS
Appendix D
Stewarding, Security & Terrorism Plan

This document sets out the Terrorism Threat to the above event and is based on guidance from
HM Government and NACTSO.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 97 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



Threats — There is nothing historically or currently to suggest that this event is a high threat event or
location. There is no intelligence from the police (CTSA) that the threat in Northampton is any
higher than elsewhere in the country.

The location and type of event is not high profile and it is thought that it is unlikely that such an
event would be targeted.

Protect - However in order to protect our assets we will ensure that the site of the event will be
secured by the usage of Herras fencing, staff manning gates and on site security staff during the
build and out of hours periods.

During the event itself the entry to the site will be controlled by staff who will undertake random
searching or searching based on suspicions.

The site will also be patrolled to identify suspicious packages or items left for any period of time.
Staff will be advised to be alert to such items and to consider type of item, location and what
makes it suspicious.

There is in place a Bomb Threat form, however there is no dedicated phone line for the premises,
so this information is more likely to be received at other locations.

Action - Staff have been instructed on the following steps to be taken in the event of a suspect
package being found.

Not to touch the item.

1.
2. Move away to a safe area making enquiries o try to trace the owners of the package.
3. Preventing persons approaching the item.
4. Communicating as much information regarding the package to the Safety officer,
including location, type of package, suspicions, what action has been taken.
5. Noft to use radios or mobile phones within 25 metres.
6. Informing police via emergency system or non - emergency determined by level of threat.
7. Retention of any potential witnesses to provide information to police.
Information

1. The Party in the Park takes place between 291 August and 30" August 2020
2. This eventis being held at Abington Park, Northampton

3. From 23 August 2020 there will be build programme including fencing, and marquees and
there will be overnight security on the site.

4. The event opens at 11am on Saturday and Sunday

5. Included on the site will be food outlets consisting of bars, food hall and outside catering
units,

6. This Stewarding and Security safety plan relates to the event at Abington Park. Staffing to
be supplied by NSUK

7. The site plan sets out the locations of the arena, stalls efc.

Intention

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 98 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



4. To provide a security operation that complies with the requirements of Licensing
Legislation, the four licensing objectives, conditions for the site and Security Industry Act
requirements on the park area.

5. The Four Licensing Objectives considered in this plan are as follows

Prevention of crime and disorder.
Public Safety.

Prevention of public nuisance.
Protection of children from harm.

6. To provide a stewarding operation that provides a visible presence to ensure the safety
of those aftending the event.

7. To provide a stewarding and security operation that will be able to deal with any
incidents, that threaten the safety of the participants or spectators

8. To provide a first response to any security and safety issues.

Method

9. The Party in the Park will ensure that prior to the event commencing that a site inspection
will be made and any issues identified rectified.

10. The Party in the Park will ensure that security staff engaged in the area and in the vicinity
of the licensed bars will be SIA trained and qualified to Door Supervisor Level.

11. The Party in the Park will ensure that all security staff will be present in sufficient numbers
to be able to respond to any minor incidents in the first instance undertaking any
searching or checking at point of entry. Staffing will be provided based on the maximum
numbers anticipated and in line with

12. Purple Guide recommendations.
13. There will therefore be a requirement to consider the following;

Outdoor event

Stewarding & Security manager
Staffing for bars

Staffing for the entrance gates,
Response teams

General Stewards

[ ]
Therefore 12 SIA & 8 Stewards plus 1 managers.

e Based on a figure of 4999 at any one time attendees although there is no specific
calculation, there are events occurring during the event which will require stewarding to
ensure customer safety;

¢ Manning emergency exit gates & patrolling stewards

The stewards and security will be deployed as follows

4 SIA and 8 stewards per gate conftrolling entry and searching

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 99 thebuckleys765@gmail.com



2 SIA on bars
2 SIA and 2 x 2 for Response teams
Remaining staff to patrol and ensure red routes are kept clear.

Some of these stewards will be re-deployed during the event to cover the high profile event
occurrences

NSUK will ensure that security staff will patrol the fence line dissuading misbehaviour
NSUK will ensure that stewards engaged on the event will be as follows;
Safety Stewards general duties patrolling, advising and reporting.

All stewards will be adequately briefed, and be in possession of duty cards outlining their
individual and organisational roles.

All staff will be in possession of and wearing High Visibility vests or jackets whilst working.

Stewards and security staff will at all fimes be alert to issues and potential problems they will use
the following process in the carrying out of their duties

Looking and Listening at what is going on, in and around where they are working
Assess what they have seen and heard

Take action appropriate to the threat or incident having first informed the Command Centre
(who will supply additional staff as required)

Ensure that they keep a report of what they saw and did.

At all times the stewards and security staff will ensure that the action they take will not put
themselves or colleagues in danger of injury.

Staff will also try to undertake the following
e Establish what has happened
e Determine what action can be taken to resolve any problems

¢ Only make decisions on what can be achieved
In the event of a major incident, dependent on the type, staff employed as stewards will come
under the command of the Senior Fire, Police or Ambulance Officer once in attendance. This will
be determined in line with the attached Statement of Intent

Evacuation Procedures

In the event of an emergency there will be a Public Address Announcement from the Stage
Area or via the steward’s radio system as follows.

Attention, Attention, all stewards to posts Code Red (Fire), Blue(Crowd disorder), Black
(Suspect package) or Green(Medical Emergency)

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 10Ohebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



On hearing this be alert for further messages.
Stand down Message

Attention, Attention all stewards can now return to normal duties.
Evacuation Message
PA announcement

Ladies and gentlemen due to circumstances beyond our conftrol it is not possible to continue with
this event, please leave the site as directed by the stewards.

Back Up
The Safety Officer will have loud hailers to use in the event of electrical failure

Stewards will also be directed to pre-determined locations as set out in their duty cards and direct
persons away from the risk.

RVP

These areas will be signed and will have a steward in attendance to meet the attending
emergency services and direct them to the site of the incident.

RVP 1 - Park Avenue South Enfrance
RVP 2 — Abington Park Crescent entrance
Communications
Identified staff will be issued with radios as per the staffing schedule.

The Event Organiser, Safety Officer, Supervisors and First Aid provider will all be contactable via
Mobile Phones and Radio network.

SHOWT
V E

E
E TS

14

N
Appendix E
Capacity Calculations Party in the Park

| have calculated the capacity based on the following

1. Fenced Area - 110400m2
Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 10]ihebuckleys765@gmoil.com



2. Minus the fixed site structures ie; stage, food outlets = 4000m2
Therefore a total of 160400 ™2available space

We need to consider exiting widths
Using the formula; width x speed x time

30x 88 x 8 =21120 exiting capacity
This total minus 33% (the largest exit) = 14080

| have also calculated on the basis of a 2.5m? per person

SHOWTIME 3]

E NT

Appendix F

LOST/FOUND CHILD/VULNERABLE PERSON OR VULNERABLE PERSON PROCEDURE

How to deal with parent/guardians of a lost child/vulnerable person

1. If a parent/guardian approaches a member of staff and advises that
Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 2hebuckleys765@gmoil.oom



10.

11.

12.

13.

2.

they have lost a child/vulnerable person, act calmly.

Establish in the case of vulnerable persons, the reasons why the
person is deemed vulnerable.

Inform control, whether with your own radio, or ask staff with a
radio to do this for you.

Ask for a detailed description of the child/vulnerable person or
vulnerable person and where and when last seen.

Obtain details of clothing, distinguishing features etc.

Staff on gates will be alerted regarding the possibility of the
child/vulnerable person being removed from site.

Obtain contact mobile number from parent/guardian.

If the circumstances of the disappearance or the vulnerability is of
concern, then the police will be contacted immediately via the
emergency number Tel No 101 or 999

Remain in the same area where the child/vulnerable person was lost
for a period of up to 8 minutes.

If the child/vulnerable person has not been found after that period of
time re-locate with the parent to the Control Point to record fuller

details.

Personnel in your vicinity will be notified immediately to support a
rapid search of the immediate area.

Event Control Room will co-ordinate any search until the
child/vulnerable person is found.

In the event of the child/vulnerable person not being found in that
period of time then the police will be contacted via emergency

number. 101 or 999

Found Child/vulnerable person/Vulnerable Person

In the event of a child/vulnerable person being reported as being found, it is best
practice that this child/vulnerable person be dealt with calmly and reassuringly.

Stewards and staff need to inform conftrol at the earliest stage.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 103hebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



Control should also inform other staff near the location of the situation including
First Aid personnel via personnel radio. As many details of the found
child/vulnerable person will be recorded by the staff and control.

Control will make a decision based on the facts as to the action to be taken by
the staff member.

It is deemed to be good practice that the staff member and child/vulnerable
person remain in a safe area close to the location where the child/vulnerable
person was found for 8 minutes, this will give an opportunity for the
parents/guardians to re-unite with the child/vulnerable person. Make your
position easily visible to aid parents/guardians to find their child/vulnerable
person.

Obtain as much information about the child/vulnerable person as possible, name,
age, clothing, distinguishing features etc.

If the child/vulnerable person is not picked up within 8 minutes,
accompanied by at least two stewards or staff, they will be taken to
the Control Point.

In terms of child/vulnerable person protection it is good practice to wherever
possible to ensure that the staff members do not accompany the
child/vulnerable person on their own.

The staffing of the Control Room and will have the ability and
equipment to record details.

Ensure that you are satisfied with the identity of the parents/guardians before
reuniting the child/vulnerable person with the parents/guardians.

SHOWT
V E

E &
E TS

(4

N
Party in the Park

Method Statement

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 1O4hebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



The purpose of this method statement is to provide a safe system of work, based on identified risks
detailed in the attached risk assessments, for the provision of Build programme between 239
August to 315" August 2020,

This includes traffic management, entrance routes, crowd control methods, staffing and welfare
arrangements.

This document has been completed following legislative guidance and is based on best practice
and advice from Emergency Services and the Safety Advisory Group for Party in the Park

Application

This safe system of work is a method of working that takes into consideration the potential hazards
which STE employees, contractors, other site workers and members of the public could be
exposed to during the installation, operation and de-commissioning of the equipment supplied.

This system of working is based on identification of hazards, associated risks assessed ad all risks
reduced to levels as low as reasonably practicable.

Introduction

This method statement is a comprehensive, step by step description of Party in the Park
employees, and contractors intended work and takes info account:

Potential hazards and risks which Staff and Contractors, other site workers and members of the

public may be exposed to whilst works are being carried out.

e Risk of damage to Party in the Park Staff and contractors and the named site, structures and
infra-structures.

o Difficulties that may be encountered whilst carrying out the work.

e Specialist equipment and procedures needed.

¢ How the work is going to be carried out in order to remove or minimise hazards, risks or

difficulties.

Responsibilities
General

Activities ascribed to individual jobholders in this method statement may without reducing
ultimate responsibility, be delegated to a nominated representative.

Manager in Charge - David Bailey
The Manager in charge is responsible for:

e Licising with the contractors to determine job requirements

e Undertaking a site survey to help to identify potential hazards

e Preparation of a site specific method statement and risk assessments for any work 1o be
undertaken.

e Ensuring that the contractors accept the method statement

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 1O5hebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



e Ensuring that all staff are familiar with the safe system of work as set out in the method
statement.
o All staff to be briefed at 9am on Saturday 30t by the Safety Officer.

Contractor Manager - David Bailey - STE

e Responsible for ensuring staff comply to the requirements of the site

e Ensuring staff comply with risk assessments and method statements

Site Operatives

e Working in accordance with the accepted method statement and instructions from the
Manager in Charge

e Reporting any unforeseen hazards or dangerous occurrences to the Site Manager in Charge.

Scope of Works

e Provision of staff commensurate to need to manage spectator safety and security issues.

e Provision of security staff to manage licensed areas.

e Provision of staff for ticket sales

Site Survey

The project scope, labour force and equipment requirements will be determined during liaison
with STE.

In order to ascertain requirements and potential hazards, the survey will take into account the
following:

Access/Egress

The equipment requirements.

Safety of employees, other site workers and the public.

Loading, off-loading, equipment preparation and rigging of the equipment for lifting.
Risk of falling items.

Securing the equipment once it is in place.

Labour Force

The following form the core of the site feam:

The NSUK labour force will be as per the staffing schedule. The labour force will be under direct
supervision of the NSUK site manager whose contact details can be found on the STE schedule
sheet attached. Any questions or concerns from the ground staff should be directed only to the
Site Manager.

Equipment Specification

The following plant and equipment will be used on site:

As per schedule

Training Requirements

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 106hebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



NSUK will supply a labour force competent to undertake the specified work.

Security Staff will be trained and registered with SIA.

Access/Egress

Access and egress to the site will be through the entrance booths located by Victoria Promenade
Personal Protective Equipment

STE aft this work site will use the following PPE as required:

High visibility vest
Ear plugs

Gloves

Hard Hats

Safety Footwear during build and de-rig

Emergency Procedures and Equipment

In the event of an emergency all STE contractors will adhere to the site evacuation procedures.
The STE Site Supervisor will be responsible for accounting for all STE and contractors at the

assembly point.

Any personnel unable to get to the assembly point should contact the site supervisor to inform
him/her of their location.

The site supervisor is responsible for organising first aid for any STE employee or contractor injured
on site.

Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations

All accidents and incidents will be reported to STE site supervisor and recorded in the accident
book.

STE Manager will ensure that any incidents, which are legally reportable, are notified to the
relevant enforcing authority.
Housekeeping

The STE team will practice good housekeeping at all times when working on site. All scrap and
waste will be removed from site and access routes will not be unnecessarily impeded. All fools
and equipment will be removed from site following completion of the job.

SHOWTI I% QT

EVENT

4

Appendix H

The stewarding operation for STE is as follows;
e Static at perimeter fences and deterring unauthorised entry
e Paftrolling Abington Park area

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 107rhebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



Responding to and dealing with incidents.

There is also a requirement to respond to incidents in line with
the Contingency Plans.

Catering facilities are available in the arena

Medical Facilities are available on The Entrances

EMERGENCY PROCEDURES WILL BE BY USE OF PA OR RADIO PRECEDED BY
Code Red (fire),

Code Black (Suspect package),

Code Green ( Medical Incident) or

Code Blue (Crowd Incident)

SUSPECT PACKAGES - do not handle or interfere avoid all contact and try
to cordon the area.

MISSING PERSONS - Take as much detail as you can;
Name

Age/Date of Birth

Wearing

Lost where and when

Contact details of person reporting

Inform control

Stay where you are for 8 minutes

FOUND PERSON-Take as much detail as you can;
Name

Age/Date of Birth

Wearing

Found where and when

Inform confrol

Get someone to remain with you

Stay where you are for 8 minutes

Then take to First Aid Point in arena
NO STAFF SHALL LEAVE THE SITE UNLESS AUTHORISED TO DO SO
IN THE EVENT OF AN EVACUATION OF THE SITE THIS WILL BE

UNDER THE COMMAND OF Northants Police and
RVPs are located as follows — Park Ave South (RVP 1) and Abington Park Crescent (RVP2)

Appendix J
SHOWTIME &)

Covid19 Policy

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 108hebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



Show Time Events as a company value the staff that we employ, and take every
precaution to prevent staff, and guests at our events becoming injured or exposed to
danger.
We comply with Health and Safety Legislation, and work closely with Statutory bodies to
ensure that events are the safest that we can make them, taking into account any
guidance provided by them and any governmental advice and requirements.
Information
Covid1? is a virus which has to date killed or been a contributory factor in the deaths of
over 40,000 in the United Kingdom.
The virus is considered to be a pandemic with nations over the world being affected, it is
more likely to affect persons who are over 70 years of age, or persons who have existing
respiratory issues, or sensitive medical conditions.
The symptoms of the virus are as follows;

e Dry cough.

e Shortness of breath.

e High temperature.

e Loss of sense of smell.

e Loss of sense of taste.

The virus can be passed by inhalation of moisture emanating from an infected person.
Absorption through the skin from touching
Transfer from surfaces which have come into contact with an infected person

Governmental advice in stemming the virus have been as follows;

If any of the signs as shown above that they should self- isolate for a period of 7 days, to
family groups self -isolating for 14 days

Ensuring that persons remain 2 metres apart unless they are from the same household.
Closure of shops, public houses, restaurants, entertainment venues, and family gathering.
Restricting travel

Promoting the need to wash hands with soap and hot water for at least 20 seconds, after
coming intfo your own house, after usage of toilets, or touching of surfaces which have
not been disinfected previously.

We have also seen curfews being placed on persons or groups of persons.
The only permitted leaving the home address were for the following

e Aftending Doctors or chemists

e Purchasing essential foodstuffs

e Essential workers eg, NHS, Police, Care workers

e Persons who cannot work from home, avoiding public transport usage.

Effect on the Events Industry
All sporting and mass gathering events to be cancelled

Forward Movement

As time has moved on Government have based, on statistics and scientific advice,
relaxed some of the restrictions, including small get fogethers from other households
providing they do not go into the house and they maintain social distancing.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 109hebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



Premier League football have been granted permission to resume competitive games
behind closed doors and in a locked down stadium.

There is a thought that Events may be released from the current severe restrictions, with a
caveat that the following restrictions are complied with

e Numbers limited

e Social distancing remains in place

e Persons who are showing or suffering from the symptoms should be advised not to
attend

e Signage will be in place outlining restrictions which apply

e Temperature checks by use of electronic equipment at point of entry

e Staff engaged at entry points and on site to be supplied with face masks,
disposable gloves and overalls

e Customers advised not to bring more than essential items to the event.

Staff searching or coming into contact will invite persons to self -declare items

Staff, where touching has taken place, to replace items and dispose discarded items into
Yellow Hazard Sacks.

The event will not impact on emergency services removing them from front line duties.
Trained First Aid Staff and paramedic trained personnel will be on site.

There will be increased hand washing facilities

Caterers will be required to clean and disinfect surfaces at their outlets on a regular basis.
A specific risk assessment will be undertaken for each event along with a Method
Statement outlining the working procedures

’

SHO 'IE'IM QT

EVENTS Party in the Park
Appendix K Covid- 19 Method Statement

Purpose
Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 11Ohebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



The purpose of this method statement is to provide a safe system of work, based on identified risks
detailed in the attached risk assessments, for the Party in the Park and precautions to be taken to
prevent spreading the Covid-19 Virus.

Application
This safe system of work is a method of working that takes into consideration the potential hazards
which STE employees, contfractors, other site workers and members of the public could be

exposed to during the event.

This system of working is based on identification of hazards, associated risks assessed ad all risks
reduced to levels as low as reasonably practicable.

Introduction

This method statement is a comprehensive, step by step description of the infended work and
takes into account:

e Potential hazards and risks which Staff and Contractors, other site workers and members of the
public may be exposed to whilst the event is occurring.

e Specialist equipment and procedures needed.
How the work is going to be carried out in order to remove or minimise hazards, risks or
difficulties.

e Having a separate and comprehensive risk assessment for the hazards associated with
Covid19 Virus and the processes in place to reduce the risk.

Responsibilities

General

Activities ascribed to individual jobholders in this method statement may without reducing
ultimate responsibility, be delegated to a nominated representative.

Manager in Charge - David Bailey

The Manager in charge is responsible for:

e Licising with the all staff to determine job requirements

e Preparation of a site specific method statement and risk assessments for any work to be
undertaken.
Ensuring that all staff accept the method statement

e Ensuring that all staff are familiar with the safe system of work as set out in the method
statement.

e All staff to be briefed at 9am on Saturday 29t by the Safety Officer.

Contractor Manager - David Bailey - STE

e Responsible for ensuring staff comply to the requirements of the site

e Ensuring staff comply with risk assessments and method statements

Site Operatives

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 11]ihebuckleys765@gmoil.com



e Working in accordance with the accepted method statement and instructions from the
Manager in Charge
e Reporting any unforeseen hazards or dangerous occurrences to the Site Manager in Charge.

Scope of Works

e Provision of staff commensurate to need to manage spectator safety and security issues.
e Provision of staff for ticket sales

e Provision of PPE commensurate to the risk associated with Covid19

Site Survey

The project scope, labour force and equipment requirements will be determined during liaison
with STE.

In order to ascertain requirements and potential hazards, the survey will take into account the
following:

e The equipment requirements.
e Safety of employees, other site workers and the public.

Labour Force

The following form the core of the site feam:

The NSUK labour force will be as per the staffing schedule. The labour force will be under direct
supervision of the NSUK site manager whose contact details can be found on the STE schedule
sheet attached. Any questions or concerns from the ground staff should be directed only to the
Site Manager.

Contractors Staffing

The First Aid and Medical provision will be supplied by a contractor, who have received specific
training in respect of the dangers of Covid19 and action to be taken

Equipment Specification
The following plant and equipment will be used on site:

PPE for staff engaged on the site including masks, gloves and aprons.
Search protocols and searching methods supplied to staff

Electronic thermometer for usage by trained personnel at entry point.
Increased numbers of washing materials

Signage placed at entry points and around the site

Training Requirements
NSUK will supply a labour force competent to undertake the specified work.

Security Staff will be trained and registered with SIA.
Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 112hebuckleys765@gmoil.Com



First aid and Medical staff will have received training commensurate to their role.
Access/Egress

Access and egress to the site will be through the entrance booths located by Park Avenue.
Emergency Procedures and Equipment

The site supervisor is responsible for organising first aid for any STE employee or contractor injured
on site.

Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations

All accidents and incidents will be reported to STE site supervisor and recorded in the accident
book.

STE Manager will ensure that any incidents, which are legally reportable, are notified to the
relevant enforcing authority.
Housekeeping

Disposed gloves, aprons and masks will be placed in Yellow Hazard Sacks and disposed of
through accredited disposal company

Appendix L

Severity
H|M|L

For further information refer to guidance note

- H
Likelihood M

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 113hebuckleys765@gmoil.com




| L

[MITTT

H= High, M = Medium, L = Low

Risk Assessment

Work Activity

Event Medical Cover — Party in the Park

Event

Party in the Park

James Shemmeld

Name of Assessor (s)

Date of Risk Assessment

07/06/2020 | Review Date | 12 months from date of assessment

Risk Scores use a High, Medium and Low rating; this is explained in the risk assessment guidance

potential spread due
to:

e  High population
in a small area

o  Welfare facilities

provision of hand
wash/sanitisers
throughout the event
footprint

Consider making
additional space for

— lack of ;
provision for CEmping
hand Advise all attendees

washing/sanitisin
g

e  Welfare facilities
— lack of
cleaning
product/facilities

e  Guests/Staff
arriving already

to bring their own
hand sanitiser

Advise all attendees
to self-screen for
signs of COVID-19
prior to travel to the
event

A3 laminated signs

infected with with Signs &
COVID-19 Symptoms of
COVID-19

e Lack of medical
provision on site

Temperature screen
all people entering
the site

Ensure there is
additional cleaning
facilities to include
contractors and staff

Consider using and
spacing out urinals
instead of single
occupancy toilets

Consider the use of
more hand washing
facilities throughout
the site footprint

Medical provision

Assess level of risk Additional
(Use risk grid) Control and
Dynamic
. Hazard & Potential risk
Activity i assessment
(what is Who' e .
: o’s Existing control - . Risk
gs:;g) (What can cause at risk measures L|keghoo Severit Love Add
harm, and what is y | additional
possible injury) control
measures
below and
debrief.
. . M M M
Camping | Increased risk of All Ensure sufficient

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

114hebuckleys765@gmoil.com




overnight to cover
campers

Activity
Areas
including

Exhibitor
stands

Gazebos
Stages

Funfair
rides
etc...

Increased risk of
infection due to:

e  High population
in a small area

o  Welfare facilities
— lack of
provision of
handwash and/or
sanitiser

e  Welfare facilities
— Lack of
cleaning

e High traffic areas

e  Gazebos highly
populated with
people

e Unclean
surfaces

e Lack of medical
provision

Consider the
provision of more
hand wash facilities.

Operators / Traders /
Activity Organisers
MUST frequently
wipe down any
surfaces that
customers can come
into contact with.

Ensure adequate
provision is made for
the regular cleaning
of welfare facilities
by contractors
throughout the
event.

Ensure adequate
provision of
handwash and / or
hand sanitizer at all
welfare facilities
throughout the event

Gazebos used
should have sides /
front opened to allow
adequate ventilation.

Review site map to
reduce the number
of high traffic areas
where ever possible.

Medical provider in
place throughout the
event, trained to
recognise and deal
with any symptoms
of COVID19.

Emergency
escalation process in
place and
communicated with
all traders /
exhibitors / activity
organisers.

Cooking
/
Provisio
n of
Food

Increased risk of
potential spread due
to:

e Uncleaned
surfaces

e  High population
areas where
people are

Caters MUST
frequently wipe down
any surfaces that
customers can come
into contact with.

Hand sanitizers and
tissues to be
available at all
catering areas.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

115hebuckleys765@gmoil.eom




standing/eating

e Cleaning of
areas including
litter

e Lack of medical
provision

Caterers to ensure
working areas are
kept clear of rubbish
and dispose of using
gloves / litter pickers.

Medical provider in
place throughout the
event, trained to
recognise and deal
with any symptoms
of COVID19.

Review the site map
to ensure that
caterers are
appropriately
located.

Arrival at
the
Event

Increased risk of
potential spread due
to:

e High population
in a small area
waiting to enter
the event

e  Guests arriving
already infected
with COVID-19

e Lack of medical
provision

When queuing to
enter the event, A3
laminated signs in
place to advise
customer of signs
/symptoms of
COVID19.

All customers to be
screened on
entering the event
for signs and
symptoms of
COVID19 - to
include temperature
checks.

Social Media Sites
to be kept up to date
with information
regarding COVID19
and precautions for
visitors to take.

Queues to be kept to
a minimum where
ever possible.
Consider issuing
staggered entry
times on customer
tickets.

Medical provider in
place throughout the
event, trained to
recognise and deal
with any symptoms
of COVID19.

Any person
identified as having
symptoms of
COVID19 and a
case is confirmed at
the hospital, the
remainder of the
event will be
cancelled.

Frequent
communication
between event

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620

116hebuckleys765@gmoil.eom




organisers and on-
site medical team.

On site °
medical
services

Insufficient
numbers

Ambulance
taken out of
services due to
exposure to
COVID-19

Medical staff
exposed to
COVID-19

Medical facility
exposed to
COVID-19

Equipment
exposed to
COVID-19

If medical staff area
required to screen
on entry, these staff
will be super numeric
to the event medical
team.

Deep cleaning
procedures in place
to ensure vehicle is
cleaned using a
chlorine-based
product (based on
government
guidelines)

Level 2 PPE to be
used at all times by
all medical staff.
Level 3 PPE
available if treatment
is required. All staff
to be trained and
assessed in the
donning and doffing
procedure. All PPE
should be disposed
on in double bagged
clinical waste bags.

A 2 tier treatment
centre should be
used. Any patient
requiring treatment
should be screened
before entering the
main treatment tent.
Any patient with
COVID-19
symptoms must not
enter the main
treatment tent.

All medical
equipment MUST be
cleaned with a
chlorine based spray
after each use.

Work Activity Event Medical Cover — Party in the Park

Name of Assessor (s) James Shemmeld
Date of Risk Assessment | 07/06/2020 | Review Date | 12 months from date of assessment
Risk Scores use a High, Medium and Low rating; this is explained in the risk assessment guidance

N.B. Risk assessments exist for Event First Aid operations for specific equipment and procedures used by
RTC Medical Solutions Ltd only. These can be referred to and provided when required. This risk
assessment deals with site and hazard specific risks for the event.

Party in the Park — Version 4 110620 117rhebuckleys765@gmoil.com



This page is intentionally left blank



10.

11.

Proposed Licence Conditions (Police)
Party in the Park

A fully working and maintained CCTV system capable of recording and storing images
must be installed on the premises. The system must record at all times whilst the
premises are open to the public and images must be stored for a minimum of 28 days
with date & time stamping. As a minimum this must cover all entry and exit points,
both sides of all areas where the sale/supply of alcohol takes place.

A person conversant with the retrieval and down loading of CCTV and Body Worn
Video footage must be present on the premises at all times whilst they are open. This
staff member will be available to assist officers to view incidents as soon as practicable
after they occur in order to conduct an initial investigation and in line with current
Data Protection Legislation.

Each operator selling alcohol shall have a personal licence holder on the premises.

When alcohol is sold at the event the following conditions shall apply to all bars, both
for the public and in hospitality areas:

a) Bars will be closed at least 30 minutes before the event finish time.

b) Bars will not be permitted to run price promotions, happy hours or other
promotions designed to encourage excessive drinking.

Northamptonshire Police will be given a minimum of 28 day’s notice prior to any
event.

Drinks shall not be sold or served in glass vessels or containers or served in any
measure greater than a pint.

Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including free drinking water, shall

be available throughout the permitted hours in all parts of the premises where alcohol
is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises.

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises.

All training records shall be made available to Police, officers of the licensing authority
and Trading Standards upon request.

Members of the public shall not bring any alcohol into or out of the event.

The number of locations where alcohol is sold at the event shall not exceed those
indicated on the event plan.

119



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

At all locations where alcohol is sold, the name and contact telephone number of the
Designated Premises Supervisor shall be displayed in a prominent position on the
premises, so that is it clearly visible. The named Personal Licence Holder for that
location will also be displayed with their contact telephone number.

An advertised 'hotline' telephone number to the Licensee shall be available to local
residents.

All staff engaged outside the entrance to the premises, or supervising or controlling
queues, shall wear high visibility yellow jackets or vests

The licence holder shall ensure that any queue to enter the premises which forms
outside the premises is orderly and supervised by door staff so as to ensure that there
is no public nuisance or obstruction to the public highway and that the queue area is
covered by the venue’s CCTV system

Patrons shall be encouraged not to congregate outside the premises after the event
has finished.

Promotional literature and tickets will contain information regarding public transport
options and public conveniences and shall request persons to leave the area quietly.

The premises will have a documented searching policy. This document will be retained
upon the premises and made available to an officer from a responsible authority for
inspection upon reasonable request. Searches will be carried out where deemed
appropriate by SIA licenced door staff. All searches will be monitored by the venue’s
CCTV system.

The premises will have a documented drugs policy. This document will be retained
upon the premises and made available to an officer from a responsible authority for
inspection upon reasonable request

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours
of the incident and will record the following:

(a) All crimes reported to the venue

(b) All ejections of patrons

(c) Any complaints received concerning crime and disorder

(d) Any incidents of disorder (e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons (f) any faults in
the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment

(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol

(h) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

120



21. In the event that a serious and/or sexual assault is committed on the premises (or appears
to have been committed) the management will immediately ensure that:

(a) The police (and, where appropriate, the East Midlands Ambulance Service) are called
without delay;

(b) All measures that are reasonably practicable are taken to apprehend any suspects pending
the arrival of the police;

(c) The crime scene is preserved so as to enable a full forensic investigation to be carried out
by the police; and

(d) Such other measures are taken (as appropriate) to fully protect the safety of all persons
present on the premises.

22. Northamptonshire Police Control Room must be provided with the particulars of the
nominated safety co-ordinator and the Licensee.

23. Unless otherwise agreed, no later than 28 days prior to the event an Event Management
Plan must be presented to a member of Northamptonshire Police Licensing Team for their
comment and advice. The Event Management Plan shall include, as a minimum:

a) Emergency and Evacuation procedures;

b) Crowd management and stewarding arrangements;

c) A detailed plan showing site layout and emergency egress points;

d) A detailed plan of parking arrangements for each event.

24. The premises will have a recordable means of monitoring and controlling its capacity

25. There shall be adequate means of control to ensure that only permitted numbers of
persons gain access to the event site.

26. Adequate staff (stewarding and Security Industry Authority licenced) both within and
outside the licensed area must be provided at all times during the licensed event.

27.Upon reasonable request, authorised enforcement officers of the Responsible
Authorities: Environmental Health Consultation Team, Northamptonshire Police and
Northamptonshire Fire & Rescue Service, must be provided with security passes for
full and free access at all times to each and every part of the licensed area.

28. A communication system must be provided to ensure the effective operation of the
site under both normal and emergency evacuation conditions. The Licensee must
provide an adequate incident control centre and a rendezvous point for the Police and
other emergency services.

29. Adequate rigid barriers or fences designed to adequately resist right-angle and parallel
loads commensurate with probable crowd pressure must be provided around any
stage and other location where it is necessary to limit crowd pressure in the interests
of safety.

121



30. In case of evacuation, details of all marquees, tented structures and temporary
structures should be provided including emergency exits and signage.

31. Emergency exits and entrances to the event area must be kept clear at all times and
must be provided with clearly visible signage.

32. Adequate drinking water points in suitable locations must be provided and
maintained.

33. Adequate parking shall be provided within the confines of Abington Park for persons
attending events.

34. There shall be a welfare point (or equivalent area) for the reporting and management
of lost children. The welfare point will be staffed by trained (and appropriately
certified by the Disclosure and Barring Service) members of staff who will be in radio
contact with the safety co-ordinator.

35. Sufficient numbers of stewards/marshals shall be employed as required by the size of the
event to ensure that patrons leave the premises safely.

122



Agenda Item 7
R

NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE
Alcohol & Gambling Licensing Sub-Committee
Tuesday 14t July 2020

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To consider a request from Northamptonshire Police for the Review of the
Premises Licence for Les Olives, 18A & 18B Sheep Street, Northampton
(each of which are separately licensed).

2.0 Summary

2.1 The review application was received on the 13" February 2020 and submitted
in accordance with licensing objective(s) for;

e The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

2.2  The current licence holder and designated premises supervisor for each
licence is Alex Sefolli.

2.3 On 2M April 2020 the sub-committee opened the hearing on this matter which
was done remotely due to the Covid-19 pandemic and decided that they
would adjourn the matter until 2" July so that processes for full remote
hearings could be put into place.

2.4 Since then, on 9" June 2020 Northampton Borough Council Licensing was
notified by the solicitor acting for Mr Alex Sefolli that he was surrendering the
two premises licences for Les Olives. There was thereafter a 28-day period
before the licences were officially lapsed during which it was possible for
further activity on these licences could occur such an application to transfer
them. That period ends on after the 7" July when the licences will be lapsed.
To date there has been no further activity in respect of these licences. If on 8t
July the licences are lapsed then the sub-committee and all relevant parties
have already agreed that this hearing can be dispensed with.

2.5 During this period also Mr Sefolli has surrendered his personal licence
meaning that he is no longer eligible to be premises supervisor at Les Olives.

3.0 Consultations/Representations

3.1 When a request for the review of a premises licence or club premises
certificate is received, the licensing authority must display a notice at or near
the premises, and on the council’'s website. This gives responsible authorities
and any other interested parties a 28-day period during which they may make
representations in relation to the review application. It is the responsibility of
the applicant to serve a copy of the review application onto the licence holder
and the responsible authorities.

123



3.2
3.3

4.0
4.1

5.0
5.1

The local authority displayed the obligatory notice on the 14t February 2020.

During the 28 day period representations were received from the following
responsible authorities and interested parties.

Environmental Health
Business Rates

Licensing Authority

Ermir Seffoli — Property Owner

Attendance

The local authority is required to invite the licence holder, responsible
authorities and other interested parties to a hearing to consider the
application. Notification of this current hearing date was sent to the licence
holder and interested parties in the notice of determination that resulted from
the remote hearing on 2" April. All relevant parties, including the sub-
committee, were then consulted when Mr Sefolli surrendered the two
premises licences and agreed that, if during the 28 period no further activity
on the premises licences was to take place, this hearing could be dispensed
with. To date the licence holder has not acknowledged that he will be
attending the hearing. The following have confirmed that the hearing can be
dispensed with at that stage. However, should we receive any applications in
respect of one or both of the premises licences in the 28-day period, such as
a transfer application, then the review on the affected licence(s) would need to
take place and the following would attend.

Northamptonshire Police
Environmental Health
Business Rates
Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Details

Licence Number:  PL0572
The current Licence Holder of the premises is:
Alex Sefolli
The current Designated Premises Supervisor is:

Alex Sefolli

Personal Licence Number PA1585 (surrendered)
Issued by Northampton Borough Council

Issuing Date 8" April 2009

The premises PL0572 is licensed for the following activities and
times:

124



On Sales of Alcohol:

Monday — Sunday 11:00am — 3:00pm
Monday — Thursday 6:00pm — 01:00am
Friday & Saturday 6:00pm — 02:00am
Sunday 6:00pm — 01:00am
Live Music:
Friday & Saturday 8:00pm — 02:00am
Non-Standard Timings Live music every night from 1st - 31st
December.
Recorded Music:
Monday - Sunday 11:00am — 03:00pm
Monday - Thursday 6:00pm — 01:00am
Friday & Saturday 6:00pm — 02:00am
Sunday 6:00pm — 01:00am
Late Night Refreshment:
Monday - Sunday 6:00pm — 01:00am
Friday & Saturday 6:00pm — 02:00am
Sunday 6:00pm — 01:00am
Opening Hours:
Monday — Sunday 11:00am — 3:00pm
Monday — Thursday 6:00pm — 01:00am
Friday & Saturday 6:00pm — 02:00am
Sunday 6:00pm — 01:00am

5.2 Licence Number: PL0661
The current Licence Holder of the premises is:
Alex Sefolli

The current Designated Premises Supervisor is:

125



6.0
6.1

7.0
7.1

Alex Sefolli

Personal Licence Number PA1585 (Surrendered)
Issued by Northampton Borough Council

Issuing Date 8" April 2009

The premises PL0661 is licensed for the following activities and
times:

On Sales of Alcohol:
Monday — Sunday 12:00pm — 00:00 midnight
Opening Hours:

Monday — Sunday 07:00am — 00:00 midnight

History of Premises & Licence Holder

Licence records show that 18A (Ground Floor) Sheep Street was first issued
licence number PL0661 in May 2008 and 18B (First Floor) was first issued
licence number PL0O572 in February 2006.

Alex Sefolli applied to transfer the licence for 18A (Ground Floor) in November
2012 and subsequently applied to transfer 18B Sheep Street in September
2009.

At some point since 2012 both 18A and 18B merged into one establishment
known as Les Olives. To date there has not been a variation application
submitted to request that the licences are merged.

Options

At the end of the consultation period the licensing authority must hold a
hearing. It must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives, which are:

a. the prevention of crime and disorder;
b. public safety;
c. the prevention of public nuisance; and,

d. the protection of children from harm.

The steps the Sub-Committee can take are to:

a. to modify the conditions of the licence;

126



8.0
8.1
8.2

b. to exclude a licensable activity from the licence;
c. toremove the designated premises supervisor;

d. to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months;
and/or,

e. torevoke the licence.

For the purpose of a. a condition is modified if any of them are altered or
omitted or if a new condition is added.

Policy Considerations

Northampton Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy
s.182 Guidance Licensing Act 2003

Parts 11 & 13 gives guidance for determination of this application.

Paragraphs 11.16 to 11.28 highlights the elements of the Guidance that are
most relevant with respect to this application. This is not exhaustive, and
guidance should be considered fully prior to making decisions with respect to
applications.

9.0 Committee

9.1

9.2

9.3

Each application must be considered on its own merits and any conditions
attached to licences and certificates must be tailored to the individual style
and characteristics of the premises and events concerned. This is essential to
avoid the imposition of disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on
premises where there is no need for such conditions. Standardised conditions
should be avoided and indeed, may be unlawful where they cannot be shown
to be necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives in any individual
case.

Due to the measures in place to protect the public from the risk of spread of
the Coronavirus it is intended that this hearing take place through a
conference telephone call between members of the Licensing Sub-committee
and officers. In this respect the Sub-committee may wish to consider their
powers to hold the meeting in private meaning that it is not necessary for the
parties to gather in a room and compromise their health.

Further, in order to ensure that the parties do have the opportunity to exercise
their right to a hearing and present their case to members, the Sub-committee
may wish to consider its power to adjourn this application to a future date at
which time a full hearing may take place.

Appendix No Title

-_—

Application
Premises Licence PL0572 & PL0661

127




Additional documents — Representations

Report
Author

Martin O’'Connell
Senior Enforcement Officer

128




	Agenda
	5 Review of the Premises Licence - D-Light Convenience Store at 69, Kettering Road, Northampton
	Statement PC Tracey
	Statement PC Bryan
	D-Light Photo 1
	D-Light Photo 2
	D-Light Photo 3
	Fire Service Representation - D-Light
	Fire Service letter to D-Light
	Notice of Decision - D Light 17.02.2020

	6 Premises Licence Application  - Party in the Park
	Party in Park EMP
	Proposed Police Conditions

	7 Review of Premises Licence - Les Olives, 18A & 18B Sheep Street, Northampton

